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FINANCIAL

{Thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

FOR THE YEAR

Netsales . .................... ..
Operating income . . ..............,
Income/{loss) from continuing operations . .
Net income/(loss) . ....... ... .. ...
Earnings per common share

Continuing operations . .. ... .......

Net income/(loss) .. ........... ...
Net cash provided by operating activities . .
Capital expenditures . . . ........... ..

AT YEAR-END

Working capital ... ...
Totalassets . ................... ..
longtermdebt . . ... . ... .. .. ..
Redeemable preferred stock . ... ... .. ..
Stockholders equity .. ... .. ... ...
Common shares outstanding {thousands) . . . . .

OPERATING

Pine sawtimber harvested from

feelands fors) .. . .. ...
Pine sawtimber sales price (perton) . .. . . .
Lumber sales mary . . .. .. ... L.
Lumber sales price permsr) .. ... ... ...

* Includes the write-off of the Company’s investment in DelTin Fiber of $18,723000 $11440000 net of related deferred

income taxes of $7283000.

2002" 2001 2000

$ 104,512 106,011 109,531
$ 10,697 15,824 18,114
$ (13,639) 1,623 2,701
$ (13,639) 9,980 13,557
$  (1.33) (.05) 04
$  (1.33) .65 93
$ 32,452 41,238 42,919
$ 24,237 63,957 43,401
$ 2125 13,015 10,086
$ 310,546 328,380 322,633
$ 116,120 84,190 87,410
$ - 30,000 30,000
$ 162,962 180,799 176,834
11,916 11,888 11,936
713,779 673,055 566,557
41 39 45
199,463 158,225 172,059
298 306 324






Deltics Real Estate operations embody the highest end-use extension in the value
chain of our woodland ownership. We are selling land by the square foot that we
purchased years ago by the acre, and it produced steady, significant operating
income during 2002. The successful efforts at building out our Chenal Valley real
estate development in Little Rock, Arkansas, continued during the year. Residential lot
sales were down compared to the previous year, due in part to weather-related
delays in new neighborhood offerings. New phases of three existing Chenal Valley
neighborhoods were opened during the yeor, and acceptance of these offerings met
or exceeded our expectations. Our newly designed and constructed second Robert
Trent Jones, Jr. 18-hole golf course at Chenal will be open for play in late spring 2003,

{left: Ron Pearce, right: Robert Nolan)
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Robert C. Nolan, Chairman
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Ron L. Pearce, President and
Chief Executive Officer

and new golf course lots will be offered for sale during the year. Interest in commercial
property at Chenal appears to be increasing. Shareholders should note that our
4,800-acre Chenal Valley property is only 30 percent developed and has many
years of expected development remaining. It is also noteworthy that we are receiving
increasing real estate interest in our 23000-acre Ferguson Ranch block, an operative
forestry unit, which begins some two miles from the west limits of Chenal and is also
located in the extended Little Rock growth corridor. This tract, which is carried on our
books at timberland prices, represents significant longterm value for our shareholders.

The beginning of 2003 finds industry-specific trends and conditions that were
previously noted in this letter, continuing. The lumber market is seasonally and
systemically weak, even while renewed negotiations seeking a political solution of
the Canadian import issue are taking place. No one in this industry, including your
management, expects a dramatic recovery from the neartrough levels we are
currently experiencing. Yet, it is in uncertain economic times such as these that Deltic’s
asset base assumes an added lustre. Your Company’s Southern Pine timberlands and
attendant real estate opportunities derived from these lands represent intrinsic value
and tangible worth: enduring investment qualities. Deltic is a rock-solid, assetbased
company, whose “natural focus” is its greatest strength — timberland ownership.




ﬂ@g is Deltic’s naturd
focus and also ifs greatest strengfh.

Ownership of 11 m@@?%

Woeeodlands - Focused Strengths

QVERVIEW - Deltics natural focus is also its greatest strength — timberland
ownership. Amid a difficult year within the industry, the Company continued to
implement its primary business strategy of managing and acquiring timberland
and maximizing the value of its overall land holdings.

In 200}, Deltic successtully completed the divestiture of its agricultural operations
and reinvestment of the proceeds in timberland. The Company’s timberland
acquisition program is ongoing. The program has and will continue to target
purchases in Deltics established operating area, thus minimizing incremental
management costs. In addition, the Company is upgrading its existing land
holdings through the sale of non-strategic and higher and better use land and the
purchase of more productive and better located timberland through the
acquisition program.

Since becoming a public company at yearend 1996, Deltic has acquired 110400
acres of timberland, sold 19800 acres of non-strategic and higher and better use
land, increased its pine sawtimber inventory by 19 million tons, and more than
doubled its annual sawtimber harvest from 294,100 tons to 713800 tons. In the
future, the Company will continue to focus on expanding its core business segment
and maximizing the value of its land holdings through improving the productivity
of its timberland, making opportunistic land acquisitions and sales, and converting
timberland to real estate.

©OPERATIONS - During 2002, the Woodlands segment harvested a
record 713800 tons of pine sawtimber, an increase of six percent over 2001. The
average pine sawtimber sales price increased $2 per ton fo $41 per ton in 2002.
Sales of non-strategic and higher and better use land increased from 3300 acres
in 2001 to 3400 acres in 2002, although the average sales price declined from
$2,400 per acre to $1,000 per acre due to sales mix. The segment’s operating
income was $22.5 million, an increase of $.2 million compared to 2001.

Deltic planted 14,600 acres of timberland with genetically improved loblolly pine
seedlings in 2002, with 16,800 acres in 2001. The planting program is scheduled
to be reduced to 7900 acres in 2003 as much of the understocked acreage
acquired in recent years has now been reforested.

Capital spending totaled $5.2 million in 2002, the majority of which went towards
timberland acquisitions, site preparation, and planting. The Company acquired
1900 acres of timberland in 2002 and completed the purchase of an additional
5000 acres in early 2003. Deltic’s 2003 capital program includes $18 million for
timberland acquisitions and $1.7 million for site preparation and planting.

Deltic manages the wildlife resources on its properties and leases Company land
to hunting clubs. Approximately 415000 acres were leased to hunting clubs in
2002, compared to about 381000 acres in 2001. The Company also continues
to work with the Arkansas Game & Fish Commission to re-establish the black bear
population in south Arkansas.







1S to be compefitive in the
cument environment and benefit from future improvements
in market conditions despife a weak lumber market.

Deltic has positioned the mgg :;

Miills - Significant Improvements in @ Difficult Year

@QVERVIEW - In 2002, the domestic industry continued to suffer from an
oversupply of lumber. Despite the strongest housing market in 16 years and an
increase in lumber consumption, greater domestic production combined with
increased imports exceeded demand. The implementation of duties on Canadian
imports in May 2002 caused a number of Canadian producers to increase
production, worsening the imbalance. As a result, lumber prices declined for the
third consecutive year and to their lowest levels since 1992.

The Mills' financial results over the three-year period of weak lumber prices have
been disappointing. However, during this time, Deltic has continued to lower
manufacturing costs, increase production rates, and improve efficiency to position
the mills to be competitive in the current environment and benefit from future
improvements in market conditions.

OPERATIONS - In 2002, Deltics average lumber sales price was
$298 per thousand board feet ("MBF”), a decline of $8 per MBF from 2001, and
the lowest since the 1992 average of $259 per MBF. The decline in price was
offset by o $20 per MBF reduction in manufacturing costs. As a result, the
Mills' margin improved by $13 per MBF and the operating loss decreased from
$7.1 million in 2001 to $6.4 million in 2002,

In oddition to reduced manufacturing costs, the Mills made significant
improvements in other operating areas. Production increased 24 percent from
164 million board feet {"MMBF") in 2001 to 203 MMBF in 2002, hourly output

increased 22 percent, and lumber recovery improved two percent.

Due to the weak lumber market, capital spending was limited to $3.5 million in
2002 and consisted primarily of the completion of the curve sawing gang
installation at the Waldo Mill. The new gang began operating at mid-year and
has increased production rates, improved lumber recovery, and expanded the
product mix, the benefits of which will be more fully evident in 2003, The major
capital projects planned for 2003 are the addition of a second debarking system
at the Waldo Mill and upgrades to the sorter systems at both mills.
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Delrcs B0 BSTATE developments e
an example of good things that happen
o those who own lond.

Regl Estalte = On Course for Continued Success

OVERVIEW - Deltics Real Estate segment is an example of good
things that happen to those who own land. The segment was established in
1985 to convert Company-owned timberland located just west of Little Rock,
Arkansas, to real estate. Deltics initial development, Chenal Valley, is the premier
residential and commercial development in Little Rock. The development currently
contains approximately 1,400 homes and, when fully developed, will include
4,600 residences and 700 acres of commercial property. As Chenal Valley
matures and demand for additional development grows, Deltic will begin to
develop or sell some of the approximately 60000 acres it owns just to the
west of the existing development.

In response to continued low interest rates, the national and Central Arkansos
housing markets remaired strong in 2002. Chenal Valley benefited from this
trend as essentially all of the residential lots the Company offered for sale have
been sold or are under contract to be sold. Unusually wet weather, however, did
delay three lot offerings until the second half of the year and postponed a fourth
until 2003, causing lot sales to decline from 20015 record level.

OPERATIONS - Residential lot sales at the Companys three real
estate developments, Chenal Valley and Chenal Downs in west Litle Rock
and Red Ock Ridge in Hot Springs, Arkansas, declined from 198 lots in 2001 to
141 lots in 2002, while commercial sales decreased from 14 acres to .5 acres.
As a result, operating income declined to $2 million in 2002 from $74 million
the previous year.

Construction of the second golf course at Chenal Valley was essentially
completed in 2002, and the opening is scheduled for the first half of 2003
Weather-related construction delays postponed a planned fourth quarter
offering of the second neighborhood on the new golf course, Germay Court, to
the first quarter of 2003. New phases were opened in 2002 in three existing
Chenal Valley neighborhoods — LaMarche Place, The Oaks, and Chalamont
Place. Of the 150 lots developed and offered for sale in these three
neighborhoods, 148 have been sold or are under contract to be sold in 2003.

Capital spending totaled $154 million in 2002, the majority of which was
allocated to development of residential lots, construction of the new golf course,
and expansion of infrastructure. The major capital projects planned for 2003 are
related to residential development and infrastructure and include the third
neighborhood on the new golf course.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

[Thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

Results of Operations for the Year

Netsales .. ... .. ... .. .. ... ... ......
Operating income/{loss) . ........... ... .....
Income/(loss) from continuing operations .. ... ... ..
Net income/{loss) .. ... .. ... .. ... . .. .. ...
Earnings per common share
Basic
Continuing operations .. ........... ... ...
Net income/{loss) ... ........ ... ... L
Assuming dilution
Continuing operations .. ........... .. ... ...
Net income/(loss) . ... ........ ... ...
Cosh dividends declared per common share ... . ..... ..
Net cash provided/ (required) by
Operating activities . ......... ... ... ... ...,
Investing activities ... ... ... . o
Financing activities .. .. ........... ... ... .
Percentage return on
Average stockholders' equity .. ... ... L
Average borrowed and invested capital ... ... ... ...
Average total assets . ... ... ...

Capital Expenditures for the Year

Woodlands ... ...
Mills .

Corporate ... .
Discontinued agriculture operations . ............. ...

Financial Condition at Year-end

Working capital .. ...
Currentratio ... ... o
Totalassets . ... ..o
longtermdebt ...... ... .. .. .. ... .. L
Redeemable preferred stock ......................
Stockholders' equity ... ... L o
Longterm debt to stockholders’ equity ratio . ... ..... ...

* Includes the write-off of the Company’s investment in DelTin Fiber of $18,723000, $11,440000 net of related deferred income taxes of $7283000.

2002° 2001 2000 1999 1998

$ 104,512 106,011 109,531 125,010 100,684
$ 10,697 15,824 18,114 29,244 17,620
$ (13,639) 1,623 2,701 10,771 8,013
$ (13,639) 9,980 13,557 10,920 8,474
$ (1.33) (.05) 04 68 45
$ (1.33) 65 93 69 48
$ (1.33) (.05) 04 68 45
$ (1.33) 65 93 69 48
$ 25 25 25 25 25
$ 32,452 41,238 42,919 36,842 28,908
$ (35278)  (25390) (63,634) (32,183) (87,438)
$ (2239)  (12.438) 18,645 (8,037) 35,645
(7.6) 5.5 7.7 5.8 4.7
(3.2) 5.3 6.9 6.1 4.3
(4.2) 3.0 4.8 3.9 3.5

$ 5175 44,432 24,975 8,541 59,839
3,571 5,861 8,386 7,949 7,918
15,378 13,514 9,667 11,475 11,531
113 150 320 124 524

- -~ 53 527 721

$ 24,237 63,957 43,401 28,616 80,533
$ 2,125 13,015 10,086 17,569 14,231
1240 1 28101 24101 46101 3.1tol

$ 310,546 328,380 322,633 277,898 272,544
$ 116,120 84,190 87,410 55,570 45,198
$ - 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
$ 162,962 180,799 176,834 178,408 183,134
T3l 1 46btol 494101  311to] 247101
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OVERVIEW

Delfic Timber Corporation (“Deltic” or the “Company”) is a natural
resources company engaged primarily in the growing and harvesting
of timber and the manufacture and marketing of lumber, The Company
owns approximately 431100 acres of timberland, primarily in Arkansas
ond north Louisiana. The Company's sawmill operations are located at
Ola in central Arkansas (the “Ola Mill”) and at Waldo in south Arkansas
(the “Waldo Mill"). In addition to its timber and lumber operations, the
Company is engaged in recl estote development in central Arkansas.

The Company also holds a 50 percent interest in DelTin Fiber L.L.C.
{"DelTin Fiber”), a joint venture to manufacture and market medium
density fiberboard ("MDF”}. Since production began in April 1998, both
operating and financial performance have been below expectations.
As a result, on April 25, 2002, Deltic announced that Banc One
Capital Markets, Inc. had been retained as financial adviser to assist
in the evaluation of strategic alternatives for the Company’s investment
in DelTin Fiber. Subsequently, Deltic’s management and Board of
Directors completed its review of strategic alternatives and determined
that the MDF business does not represent a growth area for the
Company. Consequently, an announcement was made that the
Company intends to exit this business upon the earliest, reasonable
opportunity provided by the market. {For additional information about
the Company’s investment in Del-Tin Fiber, refer to Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements)

On December 31, 2002, Deltic redeemed the 600000 outstanding
shares of its 754 percent redeemable preferred stock. This was
primarily effected by utilizing proceeds from the Company’s

issuance of $30 million of privately placed, long-term senior notes

on December 20, 2002. These notes bear interest at a fixed stated
rate of 601 percent. This redemption will produce an aftertax savings
to the Company when comparing the non-deductible carrying cost
of the preferred stock, in the form of dividends, to the deductible
interest expense related to the new debt. Dividends on the preferred
stock had amounted to approximately $2.3 million annually.

In August 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the
disposal of Deltics agriculture segment assets, subject to using the
sales proceeds fo purchase additional Southern Pine timberland,

via tax-deferred exchanges. As a result, activities of this segment have
been accounted for as discontinued operations. Deltic engaged an
agricultural land consulting and brokerage firm to act as advisors in
evaluating and marketing about 50000 acres (opproximately 38800
acres net to Deltic) of farmland located in northeast Louisiana. The
sale of all farmland and related operational assets was successfully
concluded during 2001. {For additional information about the
Company’s discontinued agriculture operations, refer to Note 2

to the consolidated financial statements)

The wood products industry is affected by a number of factors,
including general economic conditions, interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, housing starts, residential repair and remodeling activity,
commercial construction, industry capacity and production levels, the
availobility of raw materials, and weather conditions. In 2002, the
domestic industry continued to suffer from an oversupply of lumber.
Despite the highest level of housing starts in 16 years and an increase

in lumber consumption, greater domestic production combined with
increased imports outpaced demand; and lumber prices declined to
their lowest levels since 1992.

Although lumber prices declined in 2002, Deltics average pine
sawtimber price increased due to strong local markets and timing of
sales. Improved operation af both sawmills enabled the Mills segment
to increase lumber production and reduce its operating loss in 2002
despite o lower average lumber price. Over the past three years,
pine sawtimber prices have remained relotively stable while lumber
prices have declined significently, which was a significant factor

in the Company’s sawmills operating at @ loss for the period.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Deltics operating results for 2002 were ¢ loss of $136 million,

$1.33 a share cfter preferred dividends, compared to net income

of $10 million, $65 a share, for 2001 and $136 million, $.93 a share,
for 2000. Included in 2002’ results was o noncash write-off of the
Company’ investment in DelTin Fiber totaling $18.7 million and o
related deferred tax benefit of $73 million. For the years of 2001
and 2000, net income included earnings from discontinued
agriculture operations, net of income taxes, of $8.4 million, $.70 @
share, and $109 million, $.89 a share, respectively. Continuing
operations results were a loss of $136 million in 2002, $1.33 a share,
and income of $16 million in 2001, a loss of $.05 a share. {Per share
amounts for each year were after preferred dividends) The decrease
of $152 million during 2002 was due primarily to the previously
mentioned DelTin Fiber write-off coupled with lower operating
income from Deltics Real Estate segment. [n 2000, income from
continuing operations totaled $2.7 million, $:04 a share.

During 2002, operating income was $10.7 million, a decrease of

$5.1 million when compared to 2001. The Company’s Woodlands
operations increased $.2 million as a result of higher pine sawtimber
price, coupled with an increase in harvest levels of pine sawtimber,
partially offset by a reduction in sales of non-strategic timberland and
timberland for higher and better use. The Mills segment’s operating
results improved $.7 million due primarily to a $20 per thousand
board feet {"MBF”) drop in production cost per MBF sold, which more
than offset an $8 per MBF decrease in the average lumber sales
price. Operating income for Deltics Real Estate segment decreased
$54 million, primarily the result of a reduction in both the number and
average sales price of residential lots sold combined with decreased
sales of commercial acreage.

Operating income for 2001 decreased $2.3 million compared to 2000
to $158 million. The Woodlands segment decreased $64 million due
primarily to a decrease in sales of non-strategic timberland and
timberland for higher and better use, combined with an increase in
the cost of fee timber harvested and lower prices for pine sawtimber,
partially offset by higher pine sawtimber harvest volume. Deltics Mills
segment operating results decreased $.7 million as the result of an
$18 per MBF drop in the average lumber sales price, partially offset
by a $10 per MBF drop in production cost per MBF sold. Real Estate
operations increased $5 million and benefited from a 34 percent
increase in the number of residential lots sold at a higher average
price per lot, combined with increased sales of commercial acreage.
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In the following tables, Deltics net sales and results of operations are
presented for the three years ended December 31, 2002. A detailed
review, by segment, of the information presented follows the tables.

{Millions of dollars) 2002 2001 2000

Net sales
Woodlands $ 37.C 38.3 41.5
Mills 70.4 57.4 64,9
Real Estate 75.3 25.0 18.0
Eliminations (18.2) (14.7)  (14.9)
Net sales $ 1045 106.0 109.5

Operating income and net income

Woodlands $ 22.5 22.3 28.7
Mills 16.4) (7.1 (6.4)
Real Estate 2.0 7.4 2.4
Corporate (6.8} (6.4) (6.5)
Eliminations (.6) (.4} (1)
Operating income 10.7 15.8 18.1

Equity in loss of and writeoff

of investment in Del-Tin Fiber (28.2) (.1  {10.9}
Interest income 3 .9 5
Interest and other debt expense 14.8) (5.7) (4.9)
Other income/(expense) K 4 .3
Income taxes 7.7 {.7) {.4)
Income from continuing operations 173.8) 1.6 2.7
Income from discontinued

operations, net 8.4 10.9

Net income $ (13.6) 10.0 13.6

Woodlands - Deltics Woodlands operations generated net sales

of $37 million in 2002, $38.3 millien in 2001, and $41.5 million in
2000. This segment'’s operating income totaled $22.5 million in 2002,
compared to $22.3 million in 2001 and $28.7 million in 2000.

Selected financial and statistical data for the Woodlands segment is
shown in the following table.

2002 200 2000
Net scles (millions of dollars)

Pine sawtimber $ 296 26.4 25.7

Pine pulpwood 1.5 1.4 1.3
Hardwood sawtimber 5 4 1.1
Hardwood pulpwoed 4 7 4
Sales volume {thousands of tons)
Pine sawtimber 714 673 567
Pine pulpwood 250 289 235
Hardwood sawtimber 12 13 31
Hardwood pulpwood 86 114 161
Sales price (per ton)
Pine sawtimber $ 4 39 45
Pine pulpwood b 5 5
Hardwood sawtimber a1 32 35
Hardwood pulpwood 3 7 4
Timberland
Net sales {millions of dollars) $ 34 7.8 1.1
Sales volume {acres) 3,418 3.315 5,254
Sales price (per acre) $ 1,000 2,400 2,100

During 2002, net sales decreased $1.3 million, or four percent, to

$37 million. Pine sawtimber scles increased $32 million in 2002 which
reflects a $1.7 million increase attributable to higher sales volume

and $1.5 million increase due to higher sales price. The Company
harvested 713,779 tons of pine sawtimber in 2002, an increase of six
percent when compared to 673055 tons in 2001. To facilitate Deltics
growth, a timberland acquisition program was begun in late 1996
and has added 110400 acres to the Company’s timberland base.
Average sales price for pine sawtimber was $41 per ton in 2002,
which compares to $39 per ton in 200, an increase of five percent.
Hardwood sales decreased $.2 million in 2002 due to lower volume.
Net sales generated from the sale of non-strategic or higher and
better use timberland decreased $4.4 miflion to $34 million during
the 2002 period. Timberland sales totaled 3418 acres at an average
price of $1000 per acre during 2002 versus 3,315 acres at $2,400
per acre in 2001 Other net sales for Woodlands increased slightly.

Net sales were $38.3 million in 2001, a decrease of $3.2 million, or
eight percent, when compared to 2000, Sales of pine sawtimber
increased $.7 million over 2000, which reflects a $4.2 million increase
from higher sales volume, partially offset by a $3.5 million decrease
attributable to lower average sales price. Pine sawtimber harvest level
increased 19 percent in 2001 to 673055 tons which compares to
566,557 tons in 2000. Average sales price for the Company’s pine
sawtimber was $39 per ton in 2001 versus $45 per ton in 2000,

a 13 percent decline. Sales of hardwood sawtimber decreased

$.7 million due to the Company selling tracts of Louisiana hardwood
timberland during 2000. During 200, sales of timberland totaled

$78 million, o decrease of $3.3 million from 2000, Net sales included
the sale of 3315 acres of timberland at an average price of $2,400
per acre in 2001 compared fo similar sales of 5254 acres for $2,100
per acre in 2000. Other net sales for this segment were slightly higher.

Operating income of $22.5 million for 2002 was $.2 million more
than in 2001 due to reductions in costs and expenses which more
than offset the decrease in net sales discussed above. The cost

of timberland sales and related commissions expense decreased
$.5 million. Timber replanting expenses decreased $.4 million
because the 2001 period experienced higherthan-normal replanting
expenses due to the extreme heat and drought conditions which
occurred in the Company’s operating area during the summer of
2000. Expense for the Company’s cull timber removal programs
was $.2 million less than in 2001 The cost of fee timber harvested
was down $.3 million for the year due to harvest mix.

Woodlands' operating income decreased $6.4 million to $22.3 million
in 2001 In addition to the previously mentioned decrease in net sales,
the cost of fee timber harvested increased $1.5 million due mainly

to higher pine sowtimber harvest levels and a higher cost per ton of
timber harvested. A $.4 million increase in timber replanting expenses
was the result of the previously discussed heat and drought conditions
during the summer of 2000. Commission expense related to
timberland acreage sales increased $.5 million.

Mills — Net sales for the Company’s Mills segment were $70.4 million
for 2002, compared to $574 million for 2001 and $642 million
for 2000. For 2002, this segment recorded an operating loss of




$6.4 million, which compares to losses of $71 million and $6.4 million
for 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Selected financial and statistical data for the Mills segment is shown
in the following table.

2000. Operating income for this segment was $2 million in 2002,
which compares to $74 million in 2001 and $2.4 million in 2000.

Selected financial and statistical data for the Real Estate segment is
shown in the following table.

2002 2001 2000

Net sales (millions of doliars)

Lumber $59.5 48.5 55.7

Residual products 9.4 7.9 9.1
Lumber

Finished production (MMBF) 203 164 169

Sales volume (MMBF) 199 158 172

Sales price (per MBF) $ 298 306 324

In 2002, net sales totaled $704 million, an increase of 23 percent
when compared to $574 million in 2001 Lumber sales increased

$11 million due primarily to o $12.3 million increase which resulted
from higher sales volume, partially offset by @ $1.3 million reduction
from lower average sales price. The already depressed lumber market
continued to deferiorate during 2002 and resulted in Delfic’s lowest
sales realizations since 1992. During 2002, average sales price for
Jumber was $298 per MBF, a three percent decrease from $306 per
MBF in 2001. The Company's sawmills experienced a 26 percent
increase in lumber sales volume, to 1995 million board feet {('"MMBF*)
from 1582 MMBF in 2001, due to increased operating efficiencies
achieved from recently completed capital projects, combined with
temporary lumber production curtailments during 2001. Sales of
residual products were up $1.5 million.

When compared to 2000, net sales for 2001 decreased $75 million,
or 12 percent, to $574 million. Decreases in both sales price and
volume combined to produce a $72 million reduction in lumber
sales, $3 million due to price and $4.2 million due to sales volume.
Both lumber production and sales were negatively impacted by the
depressed lumber market. Average sales price of $306 per MBF
was $18 per MBF less than in 2000, and sales volume decreased
eight percent, from 172.1 MMBF in 2000 to 1582 MMBF in 2001.
The decrease in sales volume was due to temporary reductions in
lumber production during the first five months of 2001 in response to
market conditions. Residual product sales were down $1.2 million due
also to the reduction in lumber production.

A loss from operations of $6.4 million during 2002 compared to
2001% loss of $71 million. The $.7 million improvement was primarily
the result of a six percent decrease in the production cost per MBF
of lumber sold.

For 2001, operations reported a loss of $71 million which compared
to a loss of $6.4 million in 2000. The decrease in financial results
was due mainly to the reduction in net sales, partially offset by lower
manufacturing costs which benefited from a $25 per MBF reduction
in raw material cost for logs used in the Company’s sawmills.

A $.3 million write-down of the Company’s lumber inventories to
reflect its net realizable value was recorded during 2001,

Real Estate — The Company’s Real Estate operations produced net
sales of $153 million in 2002, $25 million in 2001, and $18 million in

2002 2001 2000
Net sales (millions of dollars)

Residential lots $ 9.6 16.9 8.0

Commercial sites T 2.3 5.1

Undeveloped acreage 2 3 -
Sales volume

Residential lots 141 198 148

Commercial acres 1 14 10

Undeveloped acres 22 40 5
Average sales price (thousands of dollars)

Residential lots $ 48 85 54

Commercial acres 218 18] 496

Undeveloped acres 10 7 2

Net sales in 2002 decreased $97 million, 39 percent, from $25 million
in 2001, Revenue from the sale of residential lots was down $73 million
as a result of a 29 percent decrease in the number of lots sold, from
198 in 2001 to 141 in 2002, combined with a reduction in average
sales price due to sales mix, from $85400 per lot to $68200. During
2002, 150 lots in three existing neighborhoods were developed and
offered for sale in Chenal Valley. Because of weather-related
construction delays, an additional 50 lots in a new neighborhood
adjoining the Company’s second golf course at Chenal Country Club,
the amenity around which Chenal Valley is centered, were not offered
for sale in 2002 os planned. A .53-acre commercial outparcel tract was
sold in 2002 at a sales price of $.1 million. In comparison, commercial
sales activity in 2001 included 14 acres at an average price of
$160,700 per acre. The sale of 22 acres of undeveloped acreage for
$10000 per acre in 2002 compared to sales of approximately 40
acres for $4900 per acre in 2001. Chenal Country Club, Inc. produced
net sales of $49 million for 2002 versus $48 million for 2001.

During 2001, net sales of $25 million were $7 million more than in
2000, an increase of 39 percent. Sales of residential lots increased by
34 percent, from 148 lots in 2000 to 198 lots in 2001, with an increase
in average sales price from $54000 to $85400 per lot due fo sales
mix. During 200], 217 lots were developed and offered for sale in four
neighborhoods in the Chenal Valley development, including 77 lots in
the initiol neighborhood on the new golf course. Commercial sales
revenue in 2001 totaled $2.3 million for the sale of about 14 acres at
an average price per acre of $160,700. in 2000, commercial sales of
$51 million for approximately 10 acres averaged $494,300 per acre
and included the 50000-square-foot office complex known as the
GMAC Building. Sales of about 40 acres of undeveloped real estate
for $6,900 per acre were recorded in 2001 which compares to sales
of five acres for $1,900 per acre in 2000. Net sales for Chenal Country
Club, Inc. totaled $48 million in 2001, an increase of $.4 million.

The Real Estate segment’s operating income of $2 million for 2002
decreased $5.4 million when compared to 2001. Operating income
was $74 million for 200%, an increase of $5 million over 2000,
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The changes were due primarily to the same factors impacting
net sales.

Corporate ~ Operating expense for Corporate fpncﬁons was
$638 million for 2002, which compares to $6.4 million for 2001
and $6.5 million for 2000. The increase of $.4 million during 2002

was due mainly fo higher general and administrative expenses.

Eliminations — Infersegment sales of fimber from Deltics Woodlands
segment to the Mills segment were $182 million in 2002, $14.3 million
in 2001, and $149 million in 2000. The $39 million increase during
2002 was due primarily to an increase in the percentage of logs

supplied to the Company’s manufacturing facilities from its timberlands.

The decrease of $.6 million in 2001 was because of a lower average
pine sawtimber price. Intersegment timberland sales commissions
totaled $.4 million in 2001, compared to zero in 2000 and 2002.

Equity in loss of and write-off of investment in Del-Tin Fiber -
For the year ended December 3], 2002, the Company recorded
equity in the loss of DelTin Fiber, totaling $95 million, an increase
of $.4 million when compared to 20015 equity loss of $91 million.
Deltic’s share of operating losses was $109 million in 2000.

On April 25, 2002, Deltic announced that Banc One Capital Markets,
Inc. had been retained as financial advisor fo assist in the evaluation
of strategic alternatives for the Company’ investment in Del-Tin Fiber.
Subsequently, Delfic announced that foliowing a review of the
strategic alternatives it was determined that the MDF business

did not represent a growth area for the Company. Consequently,

the Company intends fo exit this business upon the earliest,
reasonable opportunity provided by the market. As a result of this
decision, the Company’s evaluation of possible impairment of the
carrying value of ifs investment in the equity method investee, as
required by Accounting Principles Board Opinion {"APB”) 18, resulted
in the determination that the Company’s investment was impaired s
of December 31, 2002. Therefore, a non-cash write-off of Deltic’s
investment in Del-Tin Fiber, amounting to $18.7 million after an accrual
of $4.5 million representing the Company’s share of the focility’s 2003
sinking fund obligation, was recorded during 2002. {For additional
information about the Company’s investment in Del-Tin Fiber, refer to
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements)

Selected financial and statistical data for Del-Tin Fiber is shown in the
following table.

2002 2001 2000

Net sales (millions of dollars) $31.3 16.7 31.1
Finished production MMSF! 96.7 52.0 94.3
Board sales (MMSF} ) 97.7 49.3 91.1
Sales price (per MSF} $ 320 339 330

For 2002, MDF production volume was 96.7 million square feet
{"MMSF") and sales volume totaled 977 MMSE versus production
and sales volume of 52 MMSF and 493 MMSE, respectively, for 2001
which wos impacted by a four-month shutdown. Average sales price
for 2002 wos $320 per thousand square feet {"MSF”), o decreose of
$19 when compared to $339 per MSF for 2001 due primarily to a
change in product mix. Manufacturing costs per MSF for 2002 were

down 19 percent due to 2001 fixed costs being allocated to
reduced production.

In January 2001, DelTin Fiber’s facility was shut down due to weak
market conditions and high natural gas prices and to modify the
plant’s heat energy system. After completion of the modifications,
production resumed during June 2001 As a result of the four-month
shutdown, MDF production volume was down 45 percent, from
94.3 MMSF in 2000 to 52 MMSF in 2001, and sales volume was
493 MMSF in 2001 versus 911 MMSF in 2000. Although average
sales price increased $9 per MSF from $330 to $339 per MSE
fixed costs were allocated to reduced production causing unit
manufacturing costs to increase 17 percent in 2001,

Interest iIncome/Expense — During 2002, interest income was

$.3 million, compared to $.9 million in 2001 and $.5 million in 2000.
Interest and other debt expense was $4.5 million in 2002,

$5.7 million in 2001, and $49 million in 2000. Interest income
decreased $.6 million during 2002 and increased $.4 million during
2001 because the year of 2001 benefited from interest earned from
agricultural asset and timberland sales proceeds deposited with
trustees. The $1.2 million reduction in interest and other debt expense
during 2002 was due to decreased average borrowing and reduced
interest rates. For 2001, the increase of $.8 million was due to
additional borrowings required by Deltics timberland acquisition
program, other capital projects, stock repurchase program, and
advances to Del-Tin Fiber.

Income Taxes — An income tex benefit of $77 million was recorded
for the Company’s continuing operations for 2002, versus income tax
expense of $.7 million for 2001 and $.4 million for 2000. The effective
income tax rate for continuing operations was 36 percent, 31 percent,
and 13 percent in 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively. The decrease
of $84 million during 2002 was the result of a $73 million deferred
tax benefit related to the DelTin Fiber write-off and to lower pretax
income exclusive of the write-off. The Company’ income tax expense
related to continuing operations increased $.3 million during 2001
due to the impact of recording a state tax benefit for operating loss
carryforwards of a lesser amount than in 2000, partially offset by
lower pretox income.

income from Discontinued Operations ~ For 200}, income from
discontinued agriculture operations, net of income tax, was $84 million,
which compares to $109 million for 2000. Income tax expense totaled
$5.3 million and $7 million for each year, respectively. The sale

of approximately 18400 acres of farmland at a pretax gain of

$134 million benefited the year of 2001. The disposal of all agriculture
assets was completed during 200\, {For additional information about
the Company’s discontinued agriculture operations, refer to Note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements)

LIQUIDITY AND CAZBITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flows and Capital Expenditures - Net cash provided by
operating activities totaled $32.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002, which compares to $41.2 million for 2001 and
$42.9 million for 2000. Changes in operating working capital, other
than cash and cash equivalents, provided cash of $1.5 million in 2002,




$29 million in 2001, and $2.1 million in 2000. The Company’s
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows identify
other differences between net income/(loss) and cash provided by
operating activities for each reported year.

Capital expenditures required cash of $24.2 million in 2002,
$638 million in 2001, and $434 million in 2000. Other owner-
financed capital expenditures, not requiring cash, for acquisitions
of timberland amounted to $.2 million in 2001. Total capital
expenditures, by segment, for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001, ond 2000 are presented in the following table.

[Millions of dollars) 2002 2001 2000
Woodlands $ 52 44.4 25.0
Mills 35 59 8.4
Real Estate 15.4 13.5 9.7
Corporate : .1 2 3

Total capital expenditures 24.2 64.0 43.4
Ownerfinanced expenditures - (.2) -

Expenditures requiring cash $ 242 43.8 43.4

Woodlands capital expenditures included timberland acquisitions

of approximately 1900 acres at a cost of $3.2 million in 2002,
approximately 28000 acres at a cost of $42.2 million in 200,

and approximately 15500 acres at a cost of $22.7 million in 2000.
(Purchases of timberland designated as “replacement property’, as
required by the tax-deferred exchange of Deltic’s agriculture segment
assets, utilized $38.3 million for about 26,200 net acres in 2001 and
$176 million for about 10800 net acres in 2000 and are included

in capital expenditures of this segment for the respective years)
Reforestation site preparation and planting required expenditures of
$1.5 million in 2002, $1.7 million in 200), and $1.5 million in 2000
and were the result of expansion of the Company’s planting program
due to recent acquisitions of timberland and to regeneration harvests.

During 2002, $19 million was expended to complete the project to
replace the Waldo Mills vertical saw assembly with a curve sawing
gang at a fotal cost of $39 million. The project has improved log
recovery, increased hourly throughput capability, and enabled further
diversity of product mix. There were no significant capital projects
during 2002 at the Company’s Ola Mill. During 2001, $.9 million was
expended to complete payment of the project to replace the Ola Mills
vertical saw assembly and debarker with a curve sawing gang and
faster debarker. The project was completed and placed in service in
December 2000, at a total cost of $5.3 million, and has improved log
recovery, increased hourly throughput capability, enabled further
diversity of the product mix, and allowed debarking of larger logs.

At the Waldo Mill, $2.) million was spent during 2001 toward the
installation of its curve sawing gang.

Capital expenditures for Real Estate operations related to the cost of
lot development totaled $4.5 million in 2002, compared to $42 million
in 2001 ond $5.4 million in 2000. Construction of The Village at
Rahling Road, Deltics 35000-squarefoot retail center in Chenal Valley,
was completed during 2000 and required expenditures of $1.2 million
in 2000. In addition, expenditures for tenantspecified interior finishing
for this retail center required $.3 million in 2002 and $.2 million

in 2001. Site work for adjacent commercial outparcel sites totaled

$.2 million in 2000. Infrastructure construction required $.5 million in
2002 and $.7 million in 2001, with no significant such expenditures in
2000. Construction of the new 18-hole golf course at Chenal Country
Club, initiated in 2001, required expenditures of $38 million in 2002
and $48 million in 2001. Other expenditures were primarily for
various amenity improvements.

Corporate operations had capital expenditures for computer
equipment and software of $.1 million in 2002, $.2 million in 200,
and $.1 million in 2000. During 2000, $.2 million was expended for
the purchase of an additional investment in a consolidated entity.

Deltic had commitments of $138 million for capital projects in
progress at December 31, 2002, including $83 million for timberland
acquisitions, $.6 million for reforestation site preparation and planting;
$.8 million for a second debarker at the Waldo Mill to further improve
hourly throughput capability; and $36 million related to residential
lot and commercial development, infrastructure construction, and
amenity improvements at the Company’s rea! estate developments.
Commitments at the Chenal Valley development included $2.3 million
for development of residential lots in four neighborhoods and

$.9 million for various amenity projects, including $.4 million for
completion of the second golf course at Chenal Country Club.

The net change in purchased stumpage inventory required cash of
$18 million in 2002 and provided cash of $43 million in 2001 and
$.6 million in 2000. Advances to Del-Tin Fiber by the Company
amounted to $12.2 million, $14.7 million, and $12.9 million in 2002,
2001, and 2000, respectively. During 2000, $.9 million of U.S.
government securities matured. Proceeds from the disposal of
agriculture segment assets, primarily 38800 net acres of farmland
and related machinery and equipment, provided cash of $18.1 million
in 2001 and $209 million in 2000. During 2000, $149 million of the
proceeds from the sales of both farm and timber land were held by a
trustee to be used to acquire timberland designated as “replacement
property” for income tax purposes, as required for taxdeferred
exchanges. These proceeds were received from the trustee in 2001
and utilized for timberland acquisition expenditures as required.
During 2001, $2.2 million of proceeds from sales of appreciated
timberland parcels were deposited and held by a trustee in a similar
tax-deferred exchange. In 2002, these proceeds were received from
the trustee, and $2.1 million was utilized to acquire timberlands as
required while the remaining $.1 million was deposited into the
Company’s operating funds account and subject to applicable
income taxes. An additional $.4 million of similar proceeds was

held by a trustee at the end of 2002. As necessary to accomplish

the tax-deferred exchange of farmland for timberland, advances in
the form of notes receivable, amounting to $16.4 million, were made to
accommodating title holders during 2000, with repayments received
in 2001, Initiation fees received from members joining Chenal Country
Club, which are accounted for as a reduction in the cost basis of

the club rather than net sales, amounted to $1.1 million in 2002,

$ 8 million in 2001, and $.6 million in 2000.

During 2002, Deltic borrowed $63 million under its revolving credit
facility and $3.5 million under a shortterm facility, with repayments of
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$61 million and $3.5 million, respectively. In addition, the Company
issued $30 million of privately placed, fixed-interest rate, long-term
senior notes on December 20, 2002. (Upon this issuance, Deltic
applied the proceeds towards its revolving credit facility and then
borrowed $30 million under this facility on December 30, 2002, to
redeem its outstanding preferred stock) In 2001, borrowings under
available credit facilities provided $14.5 million, with repayments
amounting fo $18.3 million, and repayments of ownerfinanced debt
required $.5 million. During 2000, the Company borrowed

$64.7 million and made debt repayments, totaling $32.1 million,
including $.2 million toward ownerfinanced debt.

Purchases of treasury stock required cash of $.7 million in 2002,

$1 million in 2001, and $10 million in 2000. The increase in bank
overdraft was $.9 million in 2002 and $14 million in 2000, but it
decreased $1.4 million, to zero at yearend, during 2001. For the
three years ended December 31, 2002, cosh required to pay
preferred stock dividends totaled $2.3 million in each year. The
Company paid dividends on common stock of $3 million in 2002,
2001, and 2000. During 2002, proceeds from stock option exercises
amounted to $1.2 million, compared to zero in 2001 and 2000.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company eliminated certain stock
option exercise procedures which resulted in fixed-plan accounting
for its stock options. {For additional information about the Company’s
stock-based compensation plan, refer to Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements) In 2002 and 2001, the Company paid

$.2 million and $.5 million, respectively, related to the placement

of the $30 million of senior notes in 2002 and the negotiated
replacement of its revolving credit facility during 2001,

Financial Condition — Working capital at yearend totaled $2.1 million
in 2002 and $13 million in 2001. Deltic’s working capital rafio at
December 31, 2002, was 12 to 1, compared to 28 to 1 at the end of
200Q1. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2002 were $11 million
compared to $6.1 million at the end of 2001. During 2002, total
indebtedness of the Company increased $32 million to $116.2 million
at yearend due primarily to borrowings used to redeem its $30 million
of preferred stock on December 31, 2002. Deltic’s long-term debt to
stockholders’ equity ratio was .713 to 1 at December 31, 2002,
compared to 466 1o 1 at year-end 2001,

Liquidity — The primary sources of the Companys liquidity are
internally generated funds, access to outside financing, and working
capital. The Company’s current strategy for growth continues to
emphasize its timberland acquisition program, in addition to
expanding lumber production as market conditions allow and
developing both residential and commercial properties at Chenal
Valley and Red Oak Ridge.

To facilitate these growth plans, the Company has an agreement with
a group of banks which provides an unsecured, committed revolving
credit facility totaling $105 million. The agreement will expire on July 15,
2004. As of December 31, 2002, $59 million was available in excess of
all borrowings outstanding under or supported by the facility. The credit
agreement contains restrictive covenants, including limitations on the
incurrence of debt and requirements to maintain certain financial ratios.
(For additional information about the Company’s current financing
arrangements, refer to Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements)

In December 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized o
stock repurchase program of up to $10 million of Deltic common stock.
As of December 31, 2002, the Company had expended $1.8 million
under this program, with the purchase of 80300 shares at an average
cost of $2206 per share, of which 31,800 shares at an average

cost of $2344 were purchased during 2002, In its two previously
completed repurchase programs, Deltic purchased 479601 shares at
an average cost of $2089 and 419542 shares at a $2448 per share
average cost, respectively.

The Company has agreed to a contingent equity contribution
agreement with Del-Tin Fiber and the group of banks from whom
Del-Tin Fiber has obtained its $89 million credit facility Under

this agreement, Deltic and the other 50 percent owner of the joint
venture have agreed to fund any deficiency in contributions to either
Del-Tin Fiber’s required sinking fund or debt service reserve, up 1o @
cumuldtive total of $175 million for each owner. In oddition, each
owner has committed to a production support agreement, under
which each owner has agreed to make support obligation payments
to DelTin Fiber to provide, on the occurrence of certain events,
additional funds for payment of debt service until the plant is able

to successfully complefe a minimum production test. Both owners
have also agreed to fund any operating working capital needs

until the facility is able o consistently generate sufficient funds to
meet its cash requirements. These contingent obligations are not
reduced as a result of the Company’s write-off of the carrying

value of its investment in Del-Tin Fiber as of December 31, 2002,

Due to the probable requirement for Deltic to advance to DelTin Fiber
amounts equal to its share of the facility’s 2003 quarterly sinking
fund obligation, based on the plants 2003 cash flow projections,

the Company recorded a liability to reflect this amount. This liability,
in the amount of $4478000, is included in Deferred Revenues and
Other Accrued Liabilities in the Company’s 2002 Consolidated
Balance Sheet. No additional liability was required for such payments
after 2003 due to projected improvement in DelTin Fiber’s cash flows
and to the Company’s intent to exit the business or to refinance the
jointventures long-term debt by the end of 2003.

Tabuler summaries of the Company’s contractual cash payment
obligations and other commercial commitment expirations, by
period, are presented in the following tables. (For information about
the Company’s non-contractual cash payment obligations, refer to
Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements)

During 2004 2007 After
{Millions of dollars) Total 2003 102006 fo2008 2008
Contractual cash
payment obligations

Long-term debt $ 1162 N 46.1 43.3 26.7

Other commerciat
commitment expirations
DelTin Fiber contingent
equity contribution
agreement 17.5 - 17.5 - -
Letters of credit 1.3 .6 7 - -




Deltics management believes that cash provided from its operations
and the remaining amount available under its credit facility will be
sufficient to meet its expected cash needs and planned expenditures,
including those of the Company’s continued timberland acquisition
and stock repurchase programs, additional advances to Del-Tia Fiber,
and capital expenditures, for the foreseeable future.

The preceding discussion of the Company’ liquidity and capital
resources contains “forwarddooking statements” which were made in
reliance upon the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Reform
Act of 1995, Such statements reflect the Company’s current expectations
and involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially
from those included in such forwardlooking statements.

OTHIR MATTERS

Impact of Inflation ~ General inflation has not had a significant
effect on the Company’s operating results during the three years
ended December 31, 2002. The Company’s timber operations are
more significantly impacted by the forces of supply and demand
in the southern United States than by changes in inflation. Lumber
manufacturing operations are affected by the supply of lumber
available in the North American market and by the demand for
lumber by both the North American and foreign export markets.
Sales of real estate are affected by changes in the general economy
and longterm interest rates, specifically as such may manifest
themselves in the Central Arkansas region.

Market Risk — Market risk represents the potential loss resulting
from adverse changes in the value of financial instruments, either
derivative or non-derivative, caused by fluctuations in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, and equity security
prices. The Company handles market risks in accordance with its
established policies; however, Deltic does not enter into derivatives
or other financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
The Company does, on occasion, consider the need to enter info
financial instruments to manage and reduce the impact of changes
in inferest rates; however, the Company entered into no such
instruments during the three-year period ended December 31, 2002.
Deltic held various financial instruments at December 31, 2002 and
2001, consisting of financial assets and liabilities reported in the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets and off-balance sheet
exposures resulting from contractual debt guarantees and letters

of credit issued for the benefit of Deltic, primarily in connection with
its purchased stumpage procurement and real estate operations.
{For additional information regarding these financial instruments,
refer to Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements)

Interest Rate Risk — The Company is subject to interest rate risk from
the utilization of financial instruments, such os term debt and other
borrowings. The fair market value of long-term, fixed-interest rate debt
is subject to interest rate risk. Generally, the fair value of fixed-interest
rate debt will increase as interest rates fall and will decrease as
interest rates rise. Conversely, for floating rate debt, interest rate
changes generally do not affect the instruments’ fair value, but do
impact future earnings and cash flows, assuming other factors are
held constant. The estimated fair values of the Company’ funds held

by trustee; longterm debt, including current maturities; contractual
guarantees of debt; and lefters of credit at December 31, 2002, were
$.4 million, $1181 million, $155 million, and $1.3 million, respectively.

A one percentage-point increase in prevailing interest rates would
result in decreases in the estimated fair value of long-term debt of
$7.1 million and contractual guarantees of debt of $.5 million, while
the fair value of the Company’s funds held by trustee and letters of
credit would be unchanged. Initial fair values were determined using
the current rates at which the Company could enter into comparable
financial instruments with similar remaining maturities. The estimated
pretax earnings and cash flows impact for 2002 resulting from o one
percentage-point increase in interest rates would be approximately
$.5 million, holding other variables constant.

Foreign-Exchange Rate Risk — The Company currently has no exposure
to foreign-exchange rate risk because all of its financial instruments
are denominated in U.S. dollars.

Commodity Price Risk — The Company has no financial instruments
subject to commedity price risk.

Equity Security Price Risk - None of the Company’s financial
instruments have potential exposure to equity security price risk.

The preceding discussion of the Company’ estimated fair value

of its financial instruments and the sensitivity analyses resulting from
hypothetical changes in interest rates are “forwardooking statements”
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995, Such statements reflect the Company’s current expectations and
involve uncertainties. These forward-ocking market risk disclosures
are selective in nature and only address the potential impact from
financial instruments. They do not include other potential effects which
could impact Deltic’s business as a result of changes in interest rates,
foreign-exchange rates, commodity prices, or equity security prices.

Critical Accounting Policies — The Company has identified nine of
ifs current accounting policies as being, in management’s view, critical
to the portrayal of the Company’ financial condition and results of
operafions, in addition to requiring significant judgement on the

part of management as it pertains to certain factors inherent in the
policies. These policies, along with explanations of the key factors
identified and considered by management, are described below.

{For a listing of all significont accounting policies of the Company,
refer to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements)

Inventories - Inventories of logs, lumber, and supplies are stated

at the lower of cost or market (net realizable value), primarily using
the average cost method. log costs include harvest and transportation
cost as appropriate. Lumber costs include materials, labor, and
production overhead.

Determination of the net realizable value of each component of
lumber inventory requires estimation of the expected future selling price
for each item in inventory held for sale. For this, management utilizes
a pricing schedule, based on the Random Lengths Lumber Report,
which is prepared weekly for its sales personnel. For in-process lumber
inventories at the Company’s manufacturing facilities, this also requires
estimation of the future cost per unit to complete manufacturing
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from each stage of processing, using historical manufacturing costs.
This estimation process can affect the asset carrying value for
inventories, and any required inventory write-<down would affect
both current and future periods’ results of operations. (For additional
information about the Company’s inventories, refer to Note 3 1o the
consolidated financial statements)

Investment in Real Estate Held for Development and Sale -

Real estate held for development and sale is stated at the lower

of cost or net realizable value, and includes direct costs of land and
land development and indirect costs, including amenities. These costs
are allocated to individual lots or acreage sold based on relative
sales value. Direct costs are allocated on a specific neighborhood
basis, while indirect costs for the Company’s three developments —
Chenal Valley, Chenal Downs, and Red Oak Ridge — are allocated
to neighborhoods over the entire respective development area.

The key factors involved in determining the Investment in Real Estate
Held for Development and Sale are the treatment of the clubhouse
and golf course at Chenal Country Club, the amenity around which
the Chenal Valley development is centered, as an amenity rather
than an operating fixed asset and the management estimates required
to estimate the future indirect development costs and sales values

of the areas of Chenal Valley yet to be developed. Due to accounting
for Chenal Country Club as an amenity, the cost of the clubhouse
and golf course, including the estimated cost of planned future
improvements, are charged against income as real estate is sold
rather than depreciating this cost. This amenity treatment also records
the initiation fees received from members joining the club as a
reduction in the cost basis of the club rather than as net sales. In
addition, the Company’s model for allocating the indirect cost to be
expensed against each piece of real estate sold requires management
to estimate the future indirect costs to be incurred for the entire
development, primarily infrastructure costs and future improvements
at Chenal Country Club (net of estimated future initiction fees to be
received), as well as the potential market value of each tract of
undeveloped property within the Chenal Valley development. In
determining future indirect development costs, management relies on
cost projections for its development plans provided by independent,
professional engineering consultants. Appraisers are ufilized to
provide the potential market value for unsold acrecge.

Investment in Del-Tin Fiber — Investment in Del-Tin Fiber, a 50 percent-
owned limited liability company, is carried ot cost and is being
adjusted for the Company’s proportionate share of its undistributed
earnings or losses. The Company’s equity-method-basis carrying value
for ifs investment in Del-Tin Fiber is evaluated for possible impairment,
as required under the requirements of Accounting Principles Board
Opinion {“APB"} 18. This evaluation resulted in a defermination that the
Company’s investment was impaired as of December 31, 2002, and
the carrying amount of the investment was written-off, to zero, for the

2002 Consolidated Balance Sheet.

For Deltic’s investment in Del-Tin Fiber, the key determinations by
management are the accounting treatment for this investment under the
equity method of accounting rather than as a consolidated subsidiary
since the joint venture is 50 percent owned by both owners and the

factors used in evoluoting the impairment of its investment’s corrying
value. Deltic management has determined that there is no control

by either company due to having a Board of Managers with equal
representation. As such, the assets and liabilities of Del-Tin Fiber are
not included in the amounts reported on the Company’s balance sheet
for any period. In evaluating the possibility of the existence of an
impairment for the Company’s carrying value for its investment in
DelTin Fiber under APB 18, management must estimate future net cash
flows from the possible courses of action available for its invesiment,
such as continuing to maintain or sell its investment, to determine both
recoverability of the carrying amount and fair value of the investment.
As such, management must determine the possible courses of action
and estimate the probability of each potential action, as well as the
related future net cash flows. Then, if estimated fair value is less than
the carrying amount, management must determine if this impairment is
other than temporary. If so, then an impairment write-down is required.
{For additional information about the Company’s investment in

DelTin Fiber, refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements))

Timber and Timberlands — Timber and timberlands, which includes
purchased stumpage inventory and logging facilities, is stated at
acquisition cost less cost of fee timber harvested and accumulated
depreciation of logging facilities. The cost of fee timber harvested is
based on the volume of timber harvested in relation to the estimated
volume of timber recoverable. Logging facilities, which consist
primarily of roads constructed and other land improvements, are
depreciated using the straightline method over a ten-year estimated
life. The Company estimates its fee timber inventory using statistical
information and data obtained from physical measurements and other
information gathering techniques. The cost of timber and fimberland

"purchased and reforestation costs are capitalized. Fee timber carrying

costs are expensed as incurred.

The key components of the Timber and Timberlands policy are
management’s decision to maintain separate timber cost pools for each
legal entity within the Deltic consolidated group and the required
estimation of timber inventory volume, by species, for each of these
companies in order fo calculate the cost of fee timber harvested per
ton. Management has elected to maintain ¢ separate cost pool! for the
timber owned by each company, thus resulting in a different cost per
ton for fee timber harvested for each. The mix of harvest by company
for any period can significantly offect the amount of cost of fee fimber
harvested expense reported (2002 per ton costs ranged from

$334 to $4667 per ton for pine sawtimber). In determining these
rates, management must estimate the volume of timber existing on its
timberlands. To estimate these fee timber inventories, the Company
relies on its experienced forestry personnel and their use of statistical
information and dota obtained by octual physical measurements

and other information gathering techniques. The cost of fee timber
harvested recognized is impacted by the accuracy of this volume
estimation. {For additional information about the Company’s fimber and
timberlands, refer to Note 5 to the consclidated financial statements)

Property, Plant, and Equipment ~ Property, plant, and equipment is

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of buildings,
equipment, and other depreciable assets is primarily determined using
the straightline method. Expenditures that substantially improve and/or




increase the useful life of facilities or equipment are capitalized.
Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Gains and
losses on disposals or retirements are included in income as they occur.

Property, plont, and equipment assets are evaluated for possible
impairment on a specific asset basis or in groups of similar assets,
as applicable, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a
comperison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated
undiscounted future net cash flows to be genercted by the asset.

If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash
flows, an impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.
Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sell, and depreciation ceases.

The key factors for the Property, Plant, and Equipment policy are

the estimation of the useful lives of the Company’s various asset types,
the election to primarily utilize the straightline method for recording
depreciation, management’s judgement regarding appropriate
capitalization or expensing of costs related to fixed assets, and
management’s defermination regarding impairment of any Company
osset or group of assets. The estimation of useful lives for fixed assets
impacts the level of annual depreciation expense recorded. Utilization
of the straightline method for recording depreciation or any of the
other acceptable methods for depreciating assets results in the same
omount of depreciation over the life of an asset; however, the amount
of annual depreciation expense and the resulting carrying amount of
net property, plant, and equipment will vary significantly depending on
the method elected. Management feels that the straightline method
results in the most accurate recognition of periodic depreciation
expense for the majority of the Company’s assets. Management’s
evaluation of whether an expenditure related to property, plant, and
equipment substantially improves and/or increases the useful life of
an asset and is appropriately capitalized as an addition to the asset’s
cost basis or is expensed as normal maintenance and repair expense
also can significantly affect results of operations for a given period,
as well as the Company financial position. Management has also
evaluated any asset or group of assets for which potential impairment
might exist and has defermined that there are none requiring an
impairment write-down. This process requires management’s estimate
of future cash Hlows generated by each asset or group of assets.

For any instance where this evaluation process might indicate an
impairment exists, the appropriate assets carrying values would

be written down to fair value and the amount of the writedown
would be charged against the results of confinuing operations.

{For additional information about the Company’s property, plant, and
equipment, refer to Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements))

Revenue Recognition — Revenue from the sale of lumber and wood
by-products is recorded at the time of shipment. Revenue from the
sale of timber-cutting rights fo third parties is recorded when legal
title passes to the purchaser, which is generally upon delivery of a
legally executed timber deed and receipt of payment for the timber.
Revenue from intersegment timber sales is recorded when the timber
is harvested; such intersegment sales, which are generally made at

prices that approximate market, are eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements. Revenue from timberland and real estate sales
is recorded when the sale is closed and legal fitle is transferred,
which is generally at the time the purchaser executes the real estate
sale closing documents and makes payment to the title company
handling the closing.

Income Taxes — The Company uses the asset and liability method
of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, the provision
for income taxes includes amounts currently payable and amounis
deferred as tax assets and liabilities, based on differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of
existing assets and liabilities, and is measured using the enacted
tax rates that are assumed will be in effect when the differences
reverse. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance
which is established when it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in

tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date.

The key management decisions related to Income Taxes are the
defermination of current taxability of transactions, the election to
capitalize or expense costs incurred, the decision regarding the
appropriate depreciation method for income tax purposes (these
three factors ultimately affect the Company’s cash flows for income
taxes paid and determine the differences between the financial
stotements carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets
and liabilities), and management’s estimation of the appropriateness
of valuation allowances to reduce any deferred tax assets that exist.
The Company’s management also decided during 2002 to elect to
file consolidated state tax returns, effective with the filing of the 2001
returns, which had the effect of reduced state tax liability for the
Company: Deltic's management periodically evaluates the Company's
ability to realize future benefit of deferred tax assets by reviewing
the expected turnaround of deferred tax liabilities and the amount
of future taxable income and by evaluating tox planning strategies
that could possibly be implemented to realize deferred tax assets.
(For additional information about the Company’s income taxes, refer
to Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.)

Stock-Based Compensation - At December 31, 2002, Deltic had

a stockbased compensation plan for which the Company opplies
the recognition and measurement principles of APB 25, Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations in
accounting for those plans. Stock-based employee compensation
expense is accrued for the intrinsic value, if any, of stock options or
restricted stock granted over the applicable vesting periods using
the stroightline method. Options granted by the Company have an
exercise price equal fo the market value of the underlying common
stock on the date of grant. As of November 200, the Company
eliminated certain option exercise procedures, resulting in a change
to fixed-plan accounting treatment for all options outstanding.

Prior to that date, the Company was required to apply variable
plan accounting standards which required adjustment of the cost of
options granted for changes in the market value per share of the
Company's common stock.
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had applied the fair value recognition provisions of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board’s Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards ("SFAS") 123, Accounting for Stack-Based Compensation,
for the years ended December 31 consisted of the following:

The effect on net income/({ioss) and earnings per share if the Company

(Thousands of dollars),
except per share amounts} 2002 2001 2000

Net income/{loss}, as reported $(°3,639) 9,980 13,557
Plus total stock-based compensation

expense determined under the

intrinsic value method for awards,

net of related tax effects, included

in the determination of net income
Less pro forma total stock-based
compensation expense determined
under the fair value method for all
awards, net of related tax effects

431 402 270

937)  (785) (565

Pro forma net income/{loss) $ (14,148) 9,597 13,262
Basic earnings per share

As reported $ {1.33) 65 93

Pro forma 11.38) 62 .90
Dilutive earnings per share

As reported $ (1.33) .65 93

Pro forma (1.38) 61 90

For the pro forma net income calculation in the preceding table,

the fair value of each option on the date of grant was estimated using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the following assumptions
for awards in 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively: dividend yields

of 106 percent, 106 percent, and 97 percent; expected volatility

of 3119 percent; 38.52 percent, and 38.59 percent; risk-free interest
rates of 437 percent, 508 percent, and 680 percent; and expected
lives of five years. Using these assumptions, the weighted average
grantdate fair value per share of options granted in 2002, 200,

and 2000 was $926, $905, and $903, respectively.

The key management decision factors for Stock-Based Compensation
are the decision to account for stock-based compensation using the
intrinsic value recognition and measurement principles of APB 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, or the fair value
recognition and measurement principles of SFAS 123, Accounting

for Stock-Based Compensation, as amended by SFAS 148,
Accounting for Stocked-Based Compensation - Transition and
Disclosure, and the determination of the exercise price for options
granted. Currently, a company’s management can elect to adopt
SFAS 123 or continue to use APB 25 for recognizing stock option
expense in its financial statements. if continued use of APB 25 is
elected, the income statement will generally reflect a lesser amount
for stock-based compensation expense, and the potential impact

of adopting SFAS 123 and SFAS 148 will only be disclosed on a

pro forma basis in the financial statement footnotes. Under the
Company’s stock incentive plan, option exercise price for options
granted is equal to the fair market per share stock price on the date
of the grant, which should result in no stock-based compensation
expense for future options granted under the Company's stock
incentive plan. However, options granted in February 2002 were

subject to shareholder approval at the Company's annual
stockholders’ meeting on April 25, 2002, the accounting measurement
date for these options. As a result, these options had an intrinsic

value of $3.46 per share due to an increase in the market price

of the Company’s common stock between February and April, and
the resulting stock-based compensation expense is being recognized
over the vesting periods of these options. (For additional information
about the Company's stock-based compensation, refer to Note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements)

Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits — The Company sponsors
both a qualified and a nonqualified, noncontributory, defined benefit
retirement plan that covers substantially all employees. Benefits

are based on years of service, including those with Murphy Qil
Corperation {"Murphy Oil"}, the Company’s former parent, and final
career-average-pay formulas as defined by the plans. The qualified
plan is funded to accumulate sufficient assets to provide for accrued
benefits. The nonqualified plan, a supplemental executive plan, is not
funded; the Company pays any benefits due under this plan on a
monthly basis.

The company also sponsors a defined benefit health care plan

and ¢ life insurance benefit plan for substantially all retired
employees. The Company measures the costs of its obligations

for these plans based on its best estimate. The net periodic costs
are recognized as employees render the services necessary to earn
these postretirement benefits.

The key decisions for management related fo Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits are the plans’ assumptions for weighted
average discount rate, expected long-term rate of return on plan
assets, rate of compensation increase, and the assumed hegith care
inflation rate. In determining these assumptions, management utilizes
outside advisors and the results of industry compensation surveys.
The amount of expense related to the Company's retirement and
other postretirement benefit plans recognized annually and funding
requirements, where applicable, are directly offected by these
assumptions. {For additional information about the Company’s pension
and other postretirement benefits, including the sensitivity of annual
expense and benefit obligations, refer fo Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements)

Related-Party Transactions ~ The Company has committed to
provide to Del-Tin Fiber a portion of the plants fiber and wood supply
at market prices. This arrangement benefits Del-Tin Fiber by ensuring

a portion of its raw material needs while providing the Company with
a purchaser of residual by-products produced by its lumber mills, if
needed. The market price that Deltic receives for these transactions is
determined by the average price paid during the immediate preceding
year by Del-Tin Fiber to other suppliers of the products purchased
from the Company. During 2002 and 200, Deltic sold DelTin Fiber
approximately $3 million and $19 million, respectively, of these
residual by-products. {The increase for 2002 was due to Del-Tin Fiber
being shut down for approximately four months during 2001)

During the process of disposing of its former agriculture operations’
farmland, the Company seld 12,600 net acres in 2000 to Epps
Plantation, LLC, which is owned by the Charles H. Murphy Family




Investments Limited Parnership, for $144 million. The estate of
Charles Murphy holds a significant ownership of the Company’s
common stock; and four of the Company’s directors are related to
the late Charles Murphy: In addition, approximately 450 net acres
were sold in 2000 to Munoco Company L.C. {"Munocd”) for

$.3 million. The managing partner of Munoco is Robert C. Nolan,
Chairman of Deltic’s Board of Directors and a nephew of the late
Charles Murphy: The directors who are related to Mr. Murphy,
including Robert C. Nolan, recused themselves from all discussions
and actions related to these transactions. The sales price for all
tracts involved in these transactions was derived from an approved
market index formula which produced prices in excess of the average
of the appraised value of the tracts. During 2000, Deltic also sold
2,600 net acres of non-strategic hardwood timberland located
near its former farmlond to Epps Plantation, LLC for $49 million.
However, the Company does not anticipate similar related-party
land transactions on a recurring basis. {For additional information
regarding these related-party fransactions, refer to Notes 2 and 4
to the consolidated financial statements)

Impact of Acceunting Pronouncements — In April 2002, the
Financiel Accounting Standards Board {“FASB") issued SFAS 145,
Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections. SFAS 145 rescinds
SFAS 4, Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt, and
an amendment of that statement, SFAS ¢4, Extinguishment of Debt
Made to Satisty SinkingFund Requirements, in addition to SFAS 44,
Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carriers. SFAS 145 also
amends SFAS 13, Accounting for Leases, fo eliminate an inconsistency
between the required accounting for sale-leaseback transactions

and the required accounting for certain lease medifications thot

have economic effects that are similar to saleleaseback transactions.
SFAS 145 also amends other existing authoritative pronouncements fo
make various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their
applicability under changed conditions. Effective dates for SFAS 145
vary by issue addressed. Adoption of SFAS 145 is not expected fo
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities. SFAS 146 addresses
financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 94-3,
Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and
Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring). SFAS 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated
with an exit or disposal activity be recognized and measured initially
at fair value only when the liability is incurred, and is effective for
exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002,
Adoption of SFAS 146 is not expected to have a material impact on
the Companys financial statements.

In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 147, Acquisitions of Certain
Financial Institutions. SFAS 147 amended SFAS 72, Accounting for
Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions; SFAS 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets;

and FASB Interpretation 9 Applying APB 16 and 17 When a Savings
and Loan Association or Similar Instfitution is Acquired in a Business

Combination Accounted for by the Purchase Method. SFAS 147
requires that acquisitions of financial institutions be accounted for
using the purchase method and the recoverability of any intangible
assets recognized at acquisition be evaluated using the same
provisions as for other longlived assets that are held and used.

SFAS 147 is effective for acquisitions for which the date of acquisition
is on or affer October 1, 2002. The effective date for evaluating
previously recognized intangible assefs for impairment was

October 1, 2002. SFAS 147 will not have an impact on the

Company financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standards
Board Interpretation No. (“FIN"} 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees
of Indebtedness of Others. FIN 45 elaborates on the disclosures to be
made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements
about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also
clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of
a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken
in issuing the guarantee. The initial recognition and initial measurement
provisions of FIN 45 are applicable on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002, irrespective
of the guarantors fiscal yearend. The disclosure requirements of

FIN 45 are effective for financial statements of interim or annual
periods ending after December 15, 2002. The Company has adopted
the disclosure requirements in connection with its guarantee of funding
the debt sinking fund requirements of Del-Tin Fiber. {For additional
information about these disclosures regarding Del-Tin Fiber, refer

to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements)

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 148, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure. SFAS 148
amends SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Bosed Compensation, to
provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change

to the fair value methed of accounting for stock-based compensaticn.
In addition, SFAS 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS 123
to require mere prominent disclosures about the method of accounting
for stock-based compensation and the effect of the method used on
reported results in both annual and interim financial statements. The
Company currently applies the accounting measurement provisions

of APB 25 to account for stock-based compensation and has not
adopted the measurement provisions of SFAS 123, as amended by
SFAS 148; however, it has adopted the disclosure requirements of
both SFAS 123 and SFAS 148. (For additional information about the
Company’s stock-based compensation, refer to Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements)

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities. FIN 46 is an inferpretation of Accounfing Research
Bulletin 51, Consolidated Financial Statements, and addresses
consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities,
which have the following characteristics: {1} the equity investment
at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities
without additional subordinated financial support from other parties
and/or {2) the equity investors lack one or more of the essential
characteristics of a controlling financial interest. This interprefation
applies immediately to variable interest entities created after

n
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January 31, 2003, and to variable interest entities in which an
enterprise obtains an interest after that date. It applies in the first
fiscal year or interim period beginning after June 15 2003, to
variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds a variable
interest that it acquired before February 1, 2003. Adoption of FIN 46
is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

Disposal of Agricultural Assets — In August 2000, Deltic’s Board
of Directors approved the project to dispose of the Company’s
agricultural land holdings for pine timberland in a tax<fficient
manner. The Company engaged an agricultural land consulting
and brokerage firm to act as advisors in evaluating and marketing
about 50000 acres (approximately 38800 acres net to Deltic) of
farmland located in northeast Louisiana. As of December 31, 2001,
the Company had closed on the sale of all of its former agriculture
lands, as well as all related agriculture operational assets.
Proceeds from the farmland sales were deposited with a qualified
intermediary and used to acquire pine timberland designated as
“replacement property’, in accordance with IRS provisions for a
tax-deferred exchange. (For additional information about the
Company's disposal of its agriculture assets, refer to Note 2 to

the consolidated financial statements)

Environmens’al Matters — Deltic is committed to profecting the
environment and has certain standards with which it must comply
based on federal, state, and local laws for the protection of the
environment. Costs of compliance through 2002 have not been
material, and the Company’s management currently has no
reason to believe that such costs will become material for the
foreseeable future.

Contingencies — The Company is involved in litigation incidental
to its business from time to time. Currently, there are no material legol
proceedings outstanding.

QUTLOOK

Pine sawtimber harvested from Deltics fee lands in 2003 is projected
to decrease from 2002’ level to 600000 to 650000 tons due to the
completion of the Company’s three-year harvest plan for wellstocked
timberland acreage acquired in 1998. The program to consider sales
of timberland which may be identified as non-strategic or have a
higher and better use will continue, with sales of 3000 to 5000 acres
anticipated for 2003, Although lumber production is projected to
increase, output is subject to market conditions and is estimated at
200 to 250 MMBF for 2003. Based on continued growth in west
Little Rock, Arkanscs, the Company expects the number of residenticl
lot sales to be 175 to 200 lots for the year of 2003, barring declines
in economic growth or residential construction activity Commercial
acreage sales are expected to improve from 2002 level. Due to

the Company’s commitment to fund its share of any DelTin Fiber
operating working capital needs unti! the facility is able to consistently
generate sufficient funds to meet its cash requirements or Deltic’s
ownership interest in the facility is sold, the Company will continue
to recognize losses related to DelTin Fiber to the extent of these
advances. The Company is engaged in efforts to determine market

interest for its Del-Tin Fiber ownership, and intends to continue its
efforts to improve the plant’s operating ond financial performance.

The Company’s capital expenditure budget for the year of 2003

was prepared during the fall of 2002 and provides for expenditures
totaling $38.4 million. The Woodlands capital budget includes

$18.3 million for timberland acquisitions, which will be dependent

on the availability of acreage at prices that meet the Company's
criterion for timber stocking, growth potential, site index, and location.,
(Included in this amount was $83 million for an acquisition of

4979 acres of timberland for which Deltic was negotiating purchase
at December 31, 2002, which closed in January 2003, This transaction
was included in the Company’s reported commitments at yearend)
During 2003, various sawmill projects are expected to require

$3.7 million, including $.8 million for a second log debarker af the
Waldo Mili and $.7 million to install a Jhook sorter, unscrambler, and
trimmer at the Ola Mill. Depending on market conditions, expenditures
for residential lot development totaling $8 million are projected to
add about 300 lots to available inventory. Expenditures of $1.1 million
will be required during 2003 for completion of construction of Chenal
Country Clubs second golf course and completion of construction of
new fennis courts and additional clubhouse parking. These projects
will enable club membership to increase, and the second course has
facilitated development of additional residential neighborhoods, the
second of which is currently being developed to be offered for

sale in the latter part of the first quarter of 2003. Capital and other
expenditures are under constant review, and these budgefed amounts
may be adjusted to reflect changes in the Company’s estimated cash
flows from operations, borrowings under credit facilities, or general
economic conditions.

Despite a strong housing market, lumber supply continues to

outpace demond due to overproduction in North America and
increased imports from overseas, resulting in weak lumber prices. The
implementation of duties on Canadian lumber imports in May 2002
exacerbated the imbalance, as a number of Canadian producers
responded by increasing production. The situation may improve in the
near term as the industry enters the spring building season. However,
any sustained recovery in the lumber market is dependent upon a
reduction in supply or a satisfactory resolution of the Canadian trade
issue. Although the regional market for pine sawtimber has remained
relatively stable during this period of weak lumber prices, sawtimber
prices could decline slightly in 2003 if the lumber market does not
improve. Demand for the Company's residential lots continues to be
strong and is expected to remain so as long as interest rates stay at
or near current levels.

Certain statements contained in this report that are not historical

in nature constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Words such
as “expects’ “anticipates’; “intends’; “plans’ “estimates’, or variations
of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such
forward-looking statements. These statements reflect the Company’s
current expectations and involve certain risks and uncertainties,
including those disclosed elsewhere in this report. Therefore, actual
results could differ materially from those included in such forward-

locking statements.




CONSQUIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31
{Thousands of dollars) 2002 2001
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents . ... ... ... e $ 1,057 6,122
Trade accounts receivable —net . .. .. .. L 3,230 4,319
Otherreceivables . .. ... 2,321 2,938
INVENIOMIES . . . o oo 6,257 5,565
Prepaid expenses and other currentassets . ... ... . ... ... 1,607 1,428
Total current @ssets . . . ... ... 14,472 20,372
Investment in real estate held for developmentandsale . ........ ... .. . ... ... L. 42,587 36,698
Investment in DelTin Fiber .. ... .. .. . o 11,600
Other investments and noncurrent receivables . .. ........ ... .. ... . 2,558 2,907
Timber and timberlands —net . . .. ... L 209,317 211,754
Property, plant, and equipment —net . .. ... L 39,872 41,774
Deferred charges and otherassets .. ... ... ... ... .. 2,076 3,275
Total @ssets . .. e e $ 310,546 328,380
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities
Current maturities of longterm debt .. .. ... .. L $ 70 74
Trade accounts payable . .. ... . 3,316 3,524
Accrued taxes other than income taxes . . . . ... ... 1,194 1,190
Bank overdraft . . . .. e 913 -
Deferred revenues and other accrued liabilities ... ... ... . ... ... . . 6,854 2,569
Total current liabilities .. . ... .. . 12,347 7,357
longterm debt . . . . L 118,120 84,190
Deferred tax ligbilities = net . ... ... . . 11,958 19,669
Other noncurrent liabilities . .. ... ... .. . 7,162 6,365
Redeemable preferred stock . ... . ... L - 30,000
Stockholders' equity
Cumulative preferred stock — $.01 par, authorized 20000000 shares,

zero and 600000 shares issued as redeemable preferred stock at

the end of 2002 and 200, respectively ... ... . . ... - -
Common stock — $.01 par, authorized 50000000 shares,

12813879 shares issued . . . . oot e 128 128
Capital inexcess of parvalue ... ... . 69,075 68,766
Retained earmings . . .. .ot 114,145 133,034
Unamortized restricted stock awards . .. .. .. ... . ... (133) (264)
TreasUMY SHOCK . o o (20,273) (20,865)

Total stockholders equity . ... ..o 142,962 180,799

Total liabiliies and stockholders equity .. ... ... ... $ 310,544 328,380
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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For the Years Ended December 31

(Thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000
Netsales . .. .o e $°04,512 106,011 109,531
Costs and expenses
Costofsales .. o it 76,979 68,125 71,628
Depreciation, amortization, and cost of fee timber harvested ... ..... ... ... ... 15,224 14,991 12,829
General and administrative expenses . . ... ... . 7,672 7.071 6,960
Total costs and eXPENSes . . . ... 938,815 90,187 91,417
Operating iNCOMe . . . . ..ottt 70,697 15,824 18,114
Equity in loss of and write-off of investment in Del-Tin fiber .. ......... ... ....... (28,217) (9,132) (10,938)
Inferest INCOME . . . .o e 284 946 517
Interest and other debtexpense . ... .. ... ... (£,558) (5,725) (4,921)
Other income/(expense] ... ... ... £33 438 340
Income/ (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes . ... ... .. ... ... ... (21,367) 2,351 3.112
INCOME TAXES . . . o 7,722 (728) (411)
Income/ (loss) from continuing operations . ... ... ... ... (13,639) 1,623 2,701
Discontinued operations
Income/ (loss) from discontinued agriculture operations, net of income taxes ... ... .. - - 440
Gain on disposal of agriculture segment, net of income taxes .. ... ... ... .. ... . - 8,357 10,416
Income/{loss) from discontinued operations . .. ... .. .. o Lo = 8,357 10.856
Net income/{10ss) . .. .o oo $ (13,639 9,980 13,557
Eornings per common share
Basic
Continuing OPErGHONS . . . o o oottt ittt e $ (1.33) {.05) .04
Discontinued Operahions . . . . ... oo ui i e - .70 .89
Netincome/{Ioss) . . . .o oot $ {1.33) .65 .93
Assuming dilution
Continuing operations . . ... ...ttt $ (1.33) {.05) .04
Discontinued operations . . ... ... - .70 .89
Net income/(l0ss) . .. . oot $ (1.33) .65 .93
Dividends declared per commonshare .. ... ... ... L $ 25 25 25
Average common shares outstanding fthousands] . . . ... ... 11,979 11,896 12,176

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




For the Years Ended December 31

{Thousands of dollars) 2002 2001 2000
Operating activities
Netincome/{loss) .. ... ... ... . . .. $(13,639) 9,980 13,557
Adjustments to reconcile net income/(loss} to net cash provided/(required)
by operating activities
Depreciation, amortization, and cost of fee timber harvested . .. ............ .. 15,224 14,991 13,195
Deferred income taxes . . . . ... ... (7,714) 6,655 10,129
Gain from disposal of agriculture segmentassets . .. ........... ... ....... - {14,454) (17,381)
Real estate costs recovered uponsale . ... .. ... .. L 5,486 9,577 8,428
Timberland costs recovered uponsale . ... ... . 921 1,027 762
Equity in loss of and write-off of investment in DelTin Fiber .............. ..., 28,217 9,132 10,938
Net increase/(decrease) in provisions for pension and
other postretirement benefits . . ... ... .. ... 1,387 1,001 911
(increase)/decrease in operating working capital
other than cash and cash equivalents . ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... 1,532 2,866 2,083
Other — net . .. 1,068 463 297
Net cash provided/(required) by operating activities,
including discontinued operations ... ... ... . 32,452 41,238 42,919
Investing activities
Capital expenditures requiring eash .. ... ... (24,237) (63,781) (43,401)
Net change in purchased stumpage inventory ... ... .. ... ... .. . .. (1,823) 4,321 610
Advances to DelTin Fiber . .. . . e (12,219) (14,701) (12,903)
Purchases of U.S. government securities .. ... ... . - - (12)
Maturities of U.S. government securifies .. ... ... - - 948
Proceeds from disposal of agriculture segmentassets . ......... ... .. ... - 18,079 20,859
Increase/(decrease) in farmland sale contract deposits .. ... .. . L L - (1,455) 1,455
{Increase)/decrease in funds held by trustee . .. .......... ... L L 1,789 14,082 (16,318)
Receipts of /{additions to) noncurrent receivables .. .. ... ... . oL - 17,105 {16,383)
Other — et . .o 1,212 960 1,511
Net cash provided/(required) by investing activities,
including discontinued operations . ... .. ... ..o (35,278) {25,390) (63,634)
Financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings . . ... ... .. 96,450 14,533 64,700
Repayments of notes payable and longderm debt .. .......... .. . oL (64,524) (18.815) (32,11¢)
Redemption of preferred stock ... ... ... ... ... ... (30,000 - -
Treasury stock purchases ... ... ... L (748) (1,026) (10,017)
Increase/(decrease) inbank overdraft . . ... ... 913 (1,384) 1,378
Preferred stock dividends paid . . .. ... .. L (2,344) {2,262) (2.262)
Common stock dividends poid ... ... {2.981) (2,.974) {3,038)
Proceeds from stock option exercises . ... ......... ... ..., 1,161 - -
Other —net . .. (168) {510) -
Net cash provided/(required) by financing activities,
including discontinued operations . ... ... ... (2,239) (12,438) 18,645
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. .......... ... ... ... ... (5,045) 3.410 (2,070)
Cash ond cash equivolents af beginning of year .. .. ... ... o oL 6,122 2,712 4,782
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . . ... ... . ... $ 1,057 6,122 2,712

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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For the Years Ended December 31

(Thousands of doltars) 2002 2001 2000
Cumulative preferred stock — $.01 par, authorized 20000000 shares; zero,

600000, and 600000 shares issued as redeemable preferred stock at end of

2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively (See Note 9 — Redeemable Preferred Stock) . . . .. $ - - -

Common stock — $.01 par, authorized 50000000 shares,

12,813,879 shares issuved atend of eachyear .. ... .. .. ... ... ... L 128 128 128
Capital in excess of par value

Balance at beginning of year . .. ... ... 68,766 68,757 48,808

Exercise of stock options . ... .. ... 309 ? -

Restricted stock awards .. .. ... . . . - - (51)

Balance atendofyear .. ... . . 69,675 68,766 68,757

Retained earnings

Balance at beginningofyear . ... ... .. 133,084 128,290 120,033
Net income/{loss) . ... ..o 7138,639) 9,980 13,557
Preferred stock dividends accrued . ... ... ... ... (2,269 {2,262) (2,262)
Common stock dividends declared, $.25 pershare .. .................... ... 12,981) (2,974) (3,038)
Balance atend of year ... ... . ... .. 114,745 133,034 128,290
Unamortized restricted stock awards
Balance af beginning ofyear . .. ... ... (264} (472) {205)
Stock awards . . . ... - - (472)
Sharesforfeited ... ... . ... L - - 19
Amortization to expense . .. ... .. L 131 208 186
Balanceatend ofyear .. ... ... . .. .. P {133) (264) (472)
Treasury stock
Balance at beginning of year — 925725, 878,556, and
419544 shares, respectively . .. ... 120,845} (19,869) {10.35¢4)
Shares purchased - 31,800 shares in 2002, 48,500 shares in 200,
ond 479606 shares in 2000 . . .. .. .. (746) (1,026} (10.017)
Forfeited restricted stock — 806 shares in 2000 ... ... .. ... ... ... ...... - - (19)
Shares issued for incentive plans ~ 59350 shares in 2002,
1,331 shares in 2001, and 21400 shares in 2000 . . . ... . ... ... i 1,388 30 523
Balance at end of year ~ 898175, 925725, and 878,556 shares,
respectively, at cost ... ... (28,273) (20,865) {19,869)
Total stockholders equity . .. ... ... . L $ 162,962 180,799 176,834
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Wote 1 = Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements
of Deltic Timber Corporation (“Deltic” or “the Company”) include

the accounts of Deliic and all majority-owned subsidiaries after
elimination of significant intercompany transactions and accounts.

Use of Estimates - In the preparation of the Company financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, management has
made a number of estimates and assumptions related to the reporting
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liobilifies. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents include U.S. government
securities that have a maturity of three months or less from the
date of purchase.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ~ The Company provides an
allowance for doubtful accounts based on a review of the specific
receivables outstanding. At December 31, 2002 and 200, the balance
in the allowance account was $88000 and $127000, respectively.

Inventories — Inventories of logs, lumber, and supplies are stated at
the lower of cost or market, primarily using the average cost method.
Log costs include harvest and transportation cost as appropriate.
Lumber costs include materials, labor, and production overhead.

{For additional information, see Note 3 ~ Inventories)

Investment in Real Estate Held for Development and Sale -

Real estate held for development and sale is stated at the lower of
cost or net realizable value, and includes direct costs of land and

land development and indirect costs, including amenities. These costs
are allocated to individual lofs or acreage sold based on relative sales
value. Direct costs are allocated on a specific neighborhood basis,
while indirect costs for the Company's three development areas —
Chenal Valley, Chenal Downs, and Red Oak Ridge — are allocated

to neighborhoods over the enfire respective development area.

Investment in Del-Tin Fiber — Investment in Del-Tin Fiber L.L.C.
(“DelTin Fiber”), @ 50 percentowned limited liability company; is
carried at cost and is adjusted for the Company's proportionate share
of its undistributed eamings or losses. The Company’s equity-method-
basis carrying value for its investment in Del-Tin Fiber is evaluated

for possible impairment, as applicable under the requirements of
Accounting Principles Board Opinion ("APB"} 18. This evaluation resulted
in a determination that the Company’s investment was impaired as

of December 31, 2002, and the carrying amount of the investment
was written off, to zero, for the 2002 Consolidated Balance Sheet.
(For additional information, see Note 4 — Investment in Del-Tin Fiber)

Timber and Timberlands - Timber and timberlands, which includes
purchased stumpage inventory and logging facilities, is stated at
acquisition cost less cost of fee timber harvested and accumulated
depreciation of logging facilities and includes no estimated future
reforestation cost. The cost of fee timber horvested is based on the
volume of timber harvested in relation to the estimated volume of
timber recoverable. Logging facilities, which consist primarily of roads
constructed and other land improvements, are depreciated using

the straightline method over a ten-year estimated life. The Company
estimates its fee timber invenfory using statistical information and
data obtained from physical measurements and other information
gathering techniques. The cost of timber and fimberland purchased
and reforestation costs are capitalized. Fee timber carrying costs are
expensed as incurred.

Property, Plant, and Equipment - Property, plant, and equipment is
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciction of buildings,
equipment, and other depreciable assets is primarily determined using
the straightine method. Expenditures that substantially improve and/or
increase the useful life of facilities or equipment are capitalized.
Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Gains and
losses on disposals or refirements are included in income as they occur.

Property, plant, and equipment assets are evaluated for possible
impairment on a specific asset basis or in groups of similar assets,
s applicable, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated
undiscounted future net cash flows to be generated by the asset.

If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash
flows, an impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.
Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sel|, and depreciation ceases.

Revenue Recognition - Revenue from the sale of lumber and wood
by-products is recorded at the time of shipment. Revenue from the sale
of timber-cutting rights to third parties is recorded when legal title
passes to the purchaser, which is generally upon delivery of a legally
executed timber deed and receipt of payment for the timber. Revenue
from intersegment timber sales is recorded when the timber is
harvested; such intersegment sales, which are generally made ot prices
which approximate market, are eliminated in the consolidated financial
statements. Revenue from fimberland and real estate sales is recorded
when the sale is closed and legal fitle is transferred, which is generally
at the time the purchaser executes the real estate closing documents
and makes payment to the title company handling the closing.

income Taxes - The Company uses the asset and liability method

of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, the provision

for income taxes includes amounts currently payable and amounts
deferred as tax assets and liabilities, based on differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing
assefs and liobilities, and is measured using the enacted tax rates that
are ossumed will be in effect when the differences reverse. Deferred
tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance which is established
when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tox assefs will not be realized. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of @ change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enaciment date.

Stock-Based Compensation — At December 3], 2002, Deltic had a
stockbased compensation plan for which the Company applies the
recognition and measurement principles of APB 25, Accounting for

Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations in accounting
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for those plans. Stock-based employee compensation expense is
accrued for the intrinsic value, if any, of stock options or restricted
stock granted over the applicable vesting periods using the straight-
line method. Options granted by the Company have an exercise
price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on
the date of grant. As of November 200}, the Company eliminated
certain option exercise procedures, resulting in a change to fixed-plan
accounting treatment for all options. Prior to that date, the Company
was required to apply varicble plan accounting standards which
required adjustment of the cost of options granted for changes

in the market value per share of the Company’s common stock.

{For additiona! information, see Note 15 — Incentive Plans))

The effect on net income/(loss) and earnings per share if the Company
had applied the fair value recognition provisions of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board's Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards ["SFAS"} 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,
for the years ended December 31 consisted of the following:

{Thousands of dollars,

except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2060
Net income/[loss), as reported $(123,639) 9980 13,557
Plus total stock-based compensation

expense determined under the

intrinsic value method for awards,

net of related tax effects, included

in the defermination of net income 437 402 270
Less pro forma total stock-based

compensation expense determined

under the fair value method for all

awards, net of related tax effects (937} (785) (565)
Pro forma net income/ (loss} $ (14,948} 9,597 13,262
Basic earnings per share
As reported $ (5.339) .65 .93
Pro forma 11.38) .62 .90
Dilutive earnings per share
As reported $  11.33) .65 93
Pro forma {1.38) .61 .90

For the pro forma net income caleulation in the preceding table,

the fair value of each option on the date of grant was estimated using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the following assumptions
for awards in 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively: dividend yields

of 106 percent, 106 percent, and 97 percent; expected volatility of
3119 percent, 38.52 percent, and 3859 percent; riskfree interest rates
of 437 percent, 508 percent, and 680 percent; and expected lives of
five years. Using these assumptions, the weighted average grantdate
fair value per share of options granted in 2002, 2001, and 2000 was
$926, $905, and $903, respectively

Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits — The Company
sponsors both a qualified and a nonqualified, noncontributory, defined
benefit retirement plan that covers substantially all employees. Benefits
are based on years of service, including those with Murphy Oil
Corporation (“Murphy Qil”)}, the Company’s former parent, and final
career-average-pay formulas as defined by the plans. The qualified
plan is funded to accumulate sufficient assets to provide for accrued

benefits. The nonqualified plan, a supplemental executive plan, is not
funded; the Company pays any benefits due under this plan on a
monthly basis.

The Company also sponsors a defined benefit health care plan and @
life insurance benefit plan for substantially all retired employees. The
Company measures the costs of its obligations for these plans based
on its best estimate. The net periodic costs are recognized as employees
render the services necessary to earn these postretirement benefits.

Advertising Costs — Advertising costs, primarily related to marketing
efforts for the Company’s real estate developments, are expensed as
incurred. These costs amounted to $792000 in 2002, $725000 in
2001, and $634000 in 2000 and are reflected in Cost of Sales on
the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Capitalized Interest — The Company capitalizes interest for
qualifying assets constructed or otherwise produced for which
interest on directly associated debt was incurred. Capitalized
interest is added to the cost of the underlying assets and is
amortized over the useful lives of those assets.

Capital Expenditures — Capital expenditures include additions to
Investment in Real Estate Held for Development and Sale; Timber
and Timberlands; and Property, Plant, and Equipment.

Net Change in Purchased Stumpage Inventory — Purchased
stumpage inventory consists of timber<cutting rights purchased from
third parties specifically for use in the Company’s sawmills. Depending
on the timing of acquisition and usage of this acquired stumpage
inventory, the net change in inventory can either be a source or use
of funds in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Earnings per Commeon Share — Earnings per share {"EPS”) amounts
presented are calculated under the provisions of SFAS 128, Earnings
per Share. Basic earnings per share is computed based on earnings
available to common shareholders [net income/(loss) less accrued
preferred dividends] and the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding. The earnings per share assuming dilution amounts
presented are computed based on earnings available to commen
shareholders and the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding, including shares assumed to be issued under the
Company’s stock option plan. (For a reconciliation of amounts

used in per share computations, see Note 17 - Earnings per Share)

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements — In April 2002,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB’) issued SFAS 145,
Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections. SFAS 145 rescinds
SFAS 4, Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt,
and an amendment of that statement, SFAS 64, Extinguishment of Debt
Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements, in addition to SFAS 44,
Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carriers. SFAS 145 also
amends SFAS 13, Accounting for Leases, to eliminate an inconsistency
between the required accounting for saleleaseback transactions and
the required accounting for certain lease modifications that have
economic effects that are similar to sale-deaseback transactions.

SFAS 1435 also amends other existing authorifative pronouncements to
make various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their




applicability under changed conditions. Effective dates for SFAS 145
vary by issue addressed. Adoption of SFAS 145 is not expected to
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities. SFAS 146 addresses
financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force lssue 94-3,
Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and
Other Costs to Exit an Activity {including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring). SFAS 146 requires that a liobility for a cost associated
with an exit or disposal activity be recognized and measured initially
at fair value only when the liability is incurred, and is effective for
exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002.
Adoption of SFAS 146 is not expected to have a material impact on
the Company’ financial statements.

In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 147 Acquisitions of Certain
Financial Institutions. SFAS 147 amended SFAS 72, Accounting

for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions; SFAS 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets;

and FASB Interpretation 9 Applying APB 16 and 17 When a Savings
and Loan Association or Similar Institution is Acquired in a Business
Combination Accounted for by the Purchase Method. SFAS 147
requires that acquisitions of financial institutions be accounted for using
the purchase method and the recoverability of any intangible assets
recognized at acquisition be evaluated using the same provisions

as for other long-ived assets that are held and used and is effective
for acquisitions for which the date of acquisition is on or after
October 1, 2002. The effective date for evaluating previously recognized
intangible assets for impairment was October 1, 2002, SFAS 147

will not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation No. {“FIN"} 45, Guarantor’s
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others. FIN 45 elaborates on
the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual
financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees
thot it has issued. It also clarifies that a guaranter is required to
recognize, at'the inception of a guarantes, a liabifity for the fair
value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee.

The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of FIN 45
are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or
modified after December 31, 2002, irrespective of the guarantor’s
fiscal yearend. The disclosure requirements of FIN 45 are effective
for financial statements of interim or annual perieds ending after
December 15, 2002. The Company has adopted the disclosure
requirements in connection with its guarantee of funding the

debt sinking fund requirements of DelTin Fiber. (For additional
information regarding these disclosures, see Note 4 — Investment

in DelTin Fiber)

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 148, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation ~ Transition and Disclosure. SFAS 148 amends
SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to provide
alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair
value method of accounting for stock-based compensation. In addition,

SFAS 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS 123 io
require more prominent disclosures about the method of accounting
for stock-based compensation and the effect of the method used
on reported results in both annual and interim financial statements.
The Company currently applies the accounting measurement
provisions of APB 25 to account for stock-based compensation

and has not adopted the measurement provisions of SFAS 123, as
amended by SFAS 148; however, it has adopted the disclosure
requirements of both SFAS 123 and SFAS 148.

in January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, Consolidation of Varioble
Interest Entities. FIN 46 is an interpretation of Accounting Research
Bulletin 51, Consolidated Financial Statements, and addresses
consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities,
which have the following characteristics: (1) the equity investment

at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity fo finance its activities
without additional subordinated financial support from other parties
and/or (2) the equity investors lack one or more of the essenticl
characteristics of a controlling financial interest. This interpretation
applies immediately to variable interest entities created after

January 3), 2003, and to variable interest entities in which an
enterprise obtains an interest after that date. It applies in the first fiscal
year or interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, to variable
interest entities in which an enterprise holds a variable interest that it
acquired before February 1, 2003. Adoption of FIN 46 is not expected
to have a material impact on the Companyss financial statements.

Note 2 = Discontinued Agricuiturs Szgmoent

In August 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors approved

the disposal of Deltic’s agriculture segment assets, subject to using
the sales proceeds to purchase additional pine timberland, in @
tax-deferred exchange. All 38800 net acres formerly deemed to be
agriculture lands, as well as all related agriculture operational assets,
had been sold by yearend 2001 As a result of the sales transactions
completed during 2001 and 2000, pretax gains on disposal of
agriculture segment assets of $13453000 (after related noncash
expenses of $1001,000) and $17381,000, respectively, are reported
as discontinued operations by the Company in its 2001 and 2000
Consolidated Statements of Income. Operating results for the
agriculture segment are also reported as discontinued operations,
net of income taxes.

Total net sales of the discontinued agriculture segment for 2001

and 2000, excluding asset sales proceeds, were $276000 and
$8,272,000, respectively. Operating income of the agriculture
segment during 2000, prior to the measurement date for determining
discontinued operations, was $715000, $440000 net of related
taxes of $275000. For 200), the gain on disposal of the agriculture
segment was $13,663000 before income taxes, consisting of the
$13453000 gain on sales of assets and $210000 income from
operations since the measurement date, $8357000 after related
income taxes amounting to $5306000. Gain on the disposal in
2000 was $17150000 before income taxes, consisting of the
$17.381000 gain on sales of assets and $231,000 loss from
operations since the measurement date, $10416,000 after related
income taxes amounting to $6,734000,
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Since the Company disposed of the agriculture segment in a
tax-deferred exchange, all proceeds from the farmland sales were
deposited with a qualified intermediary: In addition, Deltic also sold
approximately 5200 net acres of non-strategic Louisiana hardwood
timberland during the third and fourth quarters of 2000, which were
also replaced with pine timberland in o tax-deferred exchange. These
combined proceeds for 2000, $16317000 after deducting amounts
expended during 2000 tc purchase replacement pine timberland,
were held by the intermediary, as trustee, at December 31, 2000.
These funds, in addition to similar proceeds received in 2001,

were used during 2001 to acquire pine fimberland designated as
“replacement property’; with capital expenditures totaling $55890000.

A portion of the 2000 farmland and hardwood timberland sales
were deemed by the Company to be related-party transactions.
These transactions include sales to Epps Plantation, LLC, which

is owned by the Charles H. Murphy Family Investments Limited
Partnership. The estate of Charles Murphy holds a significant ownership
of the Company’s common stock; and four of the Company’s directors
are related to the late Charles Murphy: This related-party farmland
sale amounted to $14413000 for 12,600 net acres. In addition,
approximately 450 net acres were sold to Munoco Company L.C.
("Munoco”] for $346000. The managing partner of Munoco is Robert
C. Nolan, Chairman of Deltic’s Board of Directors and a nephew of
the late Charles Murphy. The sales price for alf related-party farmland
sale transactions was derived from an approved market index formula
which produced prices in excess of the average of the appraised
value of the acreage involved. Epps Plantation, LLC also purchased
2,600 net acres of the hardwood timberland sold for $4864000.

During 2000, Deltic and the other owners of Ashly Plantation
{This was an undivided-interest farmland operation which
conducted business as Ashly Plantation, a partnership for income
tax purposes, of which Deltic’s share of assets was 48 percent,
Upen complstion of the exchange of the operations farmland
for pine timberland, all former minority owners received either
cash or acreage representing their respective ownership shares)
acted to acquire replacement property prior to the completion
of the disposal of its farmland, utilizing the form of a “reverse
exchange” as established by an IRS revenue procedure. As part
of this transaction, Ashly Plantation borrowed $4000000 from
the Company, with the proceeds to be used as a portion of an
advance, in the form of an interestbearing note, to the intermediate
“accommodating title owner” required for the reverse exchange.
The accommodator used the funds provided by this advance as a
deposit to secure the desired replacement timberland. During the
fourth quarter of 2000, Deltic also acted to acquire replacement
property prior to the completion of the disposal of the remainder
of its farmland by utilizing a “reverse exchange’ The Company
advanced funds to an “accommodating title holder” which were
used to acquire the designated timberland. This advance, which
was in the form of an interestbearing note, combined with the
similar advance by Ashly Plantation to its accommodator, in
addition to the Ashly Plantation minority owners’ portion of the
amount borrowed from Deltic, amounted to $16,364000 at
December 31, 2000. During 200, these advances were repaid
to the Company.

NMote 38 = Inventeries

Inventories at December 31 consisted of the following:

{Thousands of dollars} 2002 2001
Logs $ 1,313 1,246
Lumber 4,630 3,859
Materials and supplies 334 460

$ 6,287 5,565

For both financial and income tax purposes the Company utilizes
the lower of cost or market basis for determining inventory carrying
valves. Lumber inventory amounts af December 31, 2002 and

2001, are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value, and the
Consolidated Statements of Income include a charge of $329000 in
2001 for an inventory write-down, which is reflected in Cost of Sales.
{$120000 of this amount was during the fourth quarter of 2001)

' i 1 o w0 AT} Tima,
Wets 4 = Investmeant In Dai-Uin Fiber

Deltic owns 50 percent of the membership interest of Del-Tin Fiber,
which completed construction and commenced production operations
of a medium density fiberboard {“MDF”) plant near El Dorado,
Arkansas, during 1998. On April 25, 2002, Deltic announced that
Banc One Capital Markets, Inc. had been retained as financial
advisor fo assist in the evaluation of strategic alternatives for

the Company’ investment in DelTin Fiber. Subsequently, Deltic
announced that following a review of these strategic alternatives, it
was determined that the MDF business did not represent a growth
area for the Company. Consequently, the Company intends to exit
this business upon the earliest, reasonable opportunity provided

by the market. As a result of this decision, the Company’s evaluation
of possible impairment of the carrying value of its investment in

the equity method investee, as required by APB 18 resulted in a
determination that the Company’s investment was impaired as of
December 31, 2002, and the carrying amount of such investment
was written off to zero, for the Company’s 2002 Consolidated
Balance Sheet. The write-off, amounting to $18,723000C, was included
in the fourth quarter operating results of the Company. However, in
performing this impairment evaluation, the Company’s management
made a number of estimates and assumptions related to the timing
of the sale of its ownership interest, the expected selling price for its
interest, future operating results for DelTin Fiber, and the ability to
refinance the jointventure’s longterm debt. It is reasonably possible
that a change in these estimates and assumptions might occur, which
could have a material impact on the Company’s future financial
statements. Due to the Company’s commitment to fund its share of
any of the facility’s operating working capital needs until the facility
is able to consistently generate sufficient funds to meet its cash
requirements or Deltic’s ownership interest in the facility is sold, the
Company will continue to recognize losses related to DelTin Fiber

to the extent of these advances. The management of DelTin Fiber has
performed evaluations of possible impairment of the long-ived assets
of the plant in accordance with SFAS 121 and/or 144, as applicable.
Todate, these analyses have indicated that no impairment exists at the
Del-Tin Fiber level.




DekTin Fiber has its own credit facility, totaling $89,000000 under
which each owner has agreed to a contingent equity contribution
agreement with Del-Tin Fiber and the group of banks from whom the
project financing was obtained. Under this agreement, both owners
have contractually agreed to a contingent equity agreement which
requires them to fund any deficiency in contributions to either

DelTin Fiber’s bond sinking fund or debt service reserve up to a
cumulative total of $17500000 per owner. Del-Tin Fiber's project
financing agreement did not require sinking fund contributions until the
first quarter of 2001. Sinking fund deposits were $4019000 in 2001
and $7676000 in 2002, and are scheduled to be $8956000 in
2003, $10457000 in 2004, and $55892,000 in 2005, However, the
final sinking fund deposit would be reduced by any amount of interest
earned on the accumulated balance of such deposits. To date, the
owners have voluntarily funded all required sinking fund deposits, and
thus have not reduced their respective contingent equity contribution
agreement obligation, in order to obtain annual renewals of the letters
of credit supporting bonds issued to finance the majority of the facility's
initial construction cost. In addition, each owner has committed to a
production support agreement, under which each owner has agreed
to make support obligation payments to Del-Tin Fiber to provide, on
the occurrence of certain events, additional funds for payment of debt
service until the plant is able to successfully complete a minimum
production test. Both owners of DelTin Fiber have also pledged their
respective membership inferest in the joint venture as collateral under
the project financing agreement. Both have alse agreed to fund any
operating working capital needs until the facility is able to consistently
generate sufficient funds to meet its cash requirements.

These contingent obligations are not reduced as a result of the
Company’s write-off of the carrying value of its investment in

DelTin Fiber as of December 31, 2002. Due to the probable
requirement for Delfic to advance to Del-Tin Fiber amounts equal to
its half of the facility’s 2003 quarterly sinking fund obligation, based
on the plant’s 2003 cash How projections, the Company recorded

a current contingent liability, in accordance with SFAS 5, Accounting
for Contingencies, to reflect this amount.This liability, in the amount
of $4478000 is included in Deferred Revenues and Other Accrued
Liabilities in the Company’s 2002 Consolidated Balance Sheet.

No additional liability was required for such payments after 2003
due fo projected improvement in Del-Tin Fiber’s cash flows and to
the Company’s intent to exit the business or to refinance the joint-
venture’s longterm debt by the end of 2003, The maximum potential
amount of future payments that could be required of the Company
under current contractual guarantees is limited to the $17500000
committed under the confingent equity agreement. However, with
the Company currently funding its share of Del-Tin Fiber’s sinking
fund contribution on a voluntary basis, potential future payments are
estimated at approximately $37653000 if the Company is net able to
refinance the facility’s long-term debt and has not sold its ownership
interest by the end of 2005. These payments consist of the Company’s
share of remaining sinking fund payments currently required of
Del-Tin Fiber, including the $17500000 contingent equity agreement
and such payments for 2003 already accrued by the Company, but
exclude any future opercting working capital needs of Del-Tin Fiber
for which an amount cannot be reasonably estimated due to recent

improvements in the plant’s production ability and to uncertainty of
the timing of the sale of Deltics interest in the joint venture.

As natural gas prices escalated during the last half of 2000 the
decision was made in late January 2001 to temporarily suspend
operations of the facility until its heat energy system could be modified.
Following completion of a capital project to modify the heat energy
system, the plant resumed operations in June 2001, Rectification of this
system will enable Del-Tin Fiber’s operations to increase production
levels closer to the plant’s capacity of 150 million square feet per year,
as market conditions improve. In addition, manufacturing cost per
thousand square feet should be lower, as fixed costs for the facility are
allocated to this increased production. Both owners funded their
respective share of the capital project.

Under the operating agreement, Del-Tin Fiber's employees operate the
plant. Deltic has committed to provide a portion of the plants fiber and
wood fuel supply at market prices. During 2002 and 200, Deltic sold
Del-Tin Fiber approximately $3018000 and $1,924000, respectively,
of these lumber manufacturing by-products. As of December 31, 2002
and 2001, the Company had a receivable from Del-Tin Fiber of
$85000 and $120000, respectively.

Del-Tin Fibers financial position at yearend 2002 and 2001 and results
of operations for years of 2002 and 2001 consisted of the following:

{Thousands of dollars) 2002 2001
Condensed Balance Sheet Information

Current assets $ 5874 5218
Debt service reserve funds 3,485 3,543
Bond sinking funds 13,930 6,072
Property, plant, and equipment ~ net 98,232 100,907
Other noncurrent assets 736 982
Total assets $ 122,275 116,722
Current liabilities $ 4,407 4,419
Longterm debt 89,005 89,000
Other noncurrent fiabilities 3 6
Members' capital/(deficif) 28,868 23,657
Accumulated other comprehensive income - (360)
Total liabilities, members’
capital/(deficit), and
other comprehensive income $122275 116,722
Condensed Income Statement Information
Net sales $ 31,307 16,718
Costs and expenses
Cost of sales 40,723 24,921
Depreciation 3,894 2,410
General and administrative expenses 1,630 1,174
Other expenses 490 762
Total costs and expenses 46,337 29,267
Operating income/ (loss) (15,030}  (12,549)

Interest income 45 186

Interest and other debt expense 4,108} (5.901)
Net income/{loss} (18,990)  (18,264)

Other comprehensive income/ (loss) 360 (360)
Comprehensive income/{loss) $ (18,630) (18,624)
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At December 3}, 2002 and 200), the Company’s share of the
underlying net assets of Del-Tin Fiber exceeded its investment by
$14,433000 and $229000, respectively. The excess relates primarily
to the Company’s write-off of its carrying amount for its investment

in Del-Tin Fiber as of December 31, 2002, and to interest received by
the Company from DelTin Fiber prior to plant startup, which was
capitalized by Deltic as a reduction of its investment and was being
amortized info income using the straightline method over a é0-month
period. {DelTin capitalized the interest paid to the Company into its
property, plant, and equipment accounts, and it is being depreciated
into the facility’s results of operations)

The Company accounts for its investment in Del-Tin Fiber under

the equity method. Accordingly, the investment in Del-Tin Fiber is
carried at cost, adjusted for the Company’s proportionate share of
undistributed earnings or losses. Cumulative net losses for the facility
have amounted to $86,313000 $43156,500 net to the Company:
As a result, no earnings have been available for distribution to

the owners. Contributions to DelTin Fiber by the Company as of
December 31, 2002, have amounted to $57708000.
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Timber and timberlands at December 31 consisted of the following:

(Thousands of dellars) 2002 2001
Purchased stumpage inventory $ 7468 5,665
Timberlands 76,772 76,468
Fee timber 182,906 179.424
Logging facilities 1,782 1,692

268,948 243,249

less accumulated cost of fee
timber harvested and

facilities depreciation

59,6

4
L
$ 209,

31 (51,495)
17 211,754

Cost of fee timber harvested amounted to $8426000 in 2002,
$8697000 in 2001, and $7224000 in 2000. Depreciation of
logging facilities was $30000 $37000, and $45000 for the years
2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
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Srenerty, Blarnt, and Eguipment

Property, plant, and equipment at December 31 consisted of
the following:

Range of

[Thousands of dollars) ~ Useful Lives 2002 2001
Land N/A $ 125 125
Land improvements 10-20 years £,070 3,265
Buildings and structures 10-20 years 4,807 4,469
Machinery and equipment  3-15 years 76,847 74,168
88,843 82,027
Less accumulated depreciation (46,277) {40,253)
$ 39,572 41,774

Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment charged to
operations was $6,768000, $6,257000, and $5926000 in 2002,
2001, and 2000, respectively, including charges to discontinued
agriculture operations of $366,000 in 2000.

Gains/(losses) on disposals or refirements of assets, exclusive
of disposition of agricultural assets, included in income were
$15000 in 2002, $57,000 in 2001, and $109000 in 2000.
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In June 2001, Deltic entered into an agreement with SunTrust Bank
and other domestic banks which provide an unsecured, committed
revolving credit facility totaling $105000000. The agreement

will expire on July 15, 2004. As of December 31, 2002 and 200,
$59,000000 and $61,000000, respectively, of committed credit
was available in excess of all borrowings outstanding under the
facility. Borrowings under the agreement bear interest at a base
rate or at an adjusted Eurodollar rate plus an applicable margin,
depending upon the type of loan the Company executes.

The applicable margin component of the interest rate varies

with the type of loan and the Company’s total debt to EBITDA ratio.
Borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001, amounted
to $46000000 and $44000000, respectively, and consisted of
Eurodollar loans. Fees associated with this revolving credit facility
include a commitment fee of 175 to .35 percent per annum on

the unused portion of the committed amount. The revolving credit
agreement contains restrictive covenants, including limitations

on the incurrence of debt and requirements to maintain certain
financial ratios.

The Company may also borrow up to $1000000 under @
shortterm credit facility with BancorpSouth. The agreement expires
December 15, 2003, with renewal annually. The amount available
to the Company under this facility is reduced by any borrowings
by Deltic. As of December 31, 2002 and 200), Deltic had no
borrowings outstanding under this line of credit, resulting in
$1,000000 available to the Company. Borrowings bear interest
based upon the New York Prime, and the facility carries a
commitment fee of .1 percent per annum on the unused amount
of the facility.

In addition, Deltic has an agreement with Regions Bank which
provides a $1,750000 credit facility. The agreement, which is
renewable annually, carries no facility fees and borrowings bear
interest based upon prime. Amounts available to Deltic under the
facility are reduced by any borrowings. The Company had no
borrowings outstanding under this facility as of December 31, 2002
or 2001, leaving $1,750000 avcilable to the Company.

{For additional information regarding these financial instruments,
see Note 12 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments)




Note 8 = indebtedness

The Company’ indebtedness at December 31 consisted of
the following:

{Thousands of dollars) 2002 2001
Notes payable, 266% ", due 2004 $ 46,000 44,000
Senior notes payable, 6.7%, due 2008 40,000 40,000
Senior notes payable, 601%, due 2012 30,000 -
Other notes payable, 5%,
due 20032006 190 264
116,390 84,264
Less current maturities of longterm debt {70) {74)
Longterm debt at December 31 $116,120 84,190

* Weighted average interest rate at December 31, 2002.

The $460000C0 of notes payable designated as due in 2004
represents the outstanding balance under the Companyss revolving
credit facility agreement with SunTrust Bank and a group of other
domestic banks. The agreement will expire on July 15, 2004,

The Company incurred costs of $520000 related to the securing
of this facility, which was deferred and is being amortized as
additional interest expense over the term of the agreement.

During 1998, the Company successtully completed negotiation

of the private placement of $40000000 of senior notes with

Pacific Coast Farm Credit, a division of American AgCredit. These
unsecured notes have a fixed stated inferest rate of 6.7 percent

and mature on December 18, 2008, No instaliment payments are
required, but the terms allow for prepayments at the option of the
Company. The agreement contains certain restrictive financial
covenants, including a minimum consolidated tangible net worth of
the sum of $135000000, plus 25 percent of cumulative consolidated
adjusted net income from October 1, 1998, and a maximum funded
debt/capitalization ratio of 6 to 1. The Company incurred $226000
of costs related to the issuance of these notes, which was deferred
and is being amortized as additional interest expense over the

term of the underlying debt. In anticipation of issuance of these
notes, the Company entered into and seftled an interest rate

hedge contract. Upon settlement of this contract in December 1998,
the Company paid $1081000, which was deferred and is being
amortized as other debt expense over the term of the underlying
debt, resulting in an effective interest rate for these notes of
approximately 69 percent.

On December 20, 2002, Deltic successfully completed the
private placement of $30000000 of senior notes with Metropolitan
Life and a group of other domestic insurance companies. These
unsecured notes have a fixed stated interest rate of 601 percent
and mature on December 20, 2012. Semiannual installments of
$3333333, or such lesser amount as shall be outstanding, are
required beginning on December 20, 2008, The note terms allow
for prepayment at the option of the Company in an amount of
not less than five percent of the principal amount outstanding at
the time of any prepayment. The agreement contains certain
restrictive financial covenants, including @ minimum consolidated

tangible net worth of the sum of $148299000, plus 25 percent of
cumulative consolidated adjusted net income from Cctober 1, 2002,
and a maximum consolidated debt to consolidated net capitalization
ratio of 6 to 1. The Company incurred $179000 of costs related

to the issuance of these notes, which was deferred and is being
amortized as additional interest expense over the term of the
underlying debt.

The scheduled maturities of longterm debt for the next five years are
$70000 in 2003, $46064000 in 2004, $32000 in 2005, $24000
in 2006, and zero in 2007, The Company anticipates attempting

to renew or replace its current revolving credit facility during the

third quarter of 2003 If successful, $46000000 of 2004's scheduled
maturities would become due in some later year. (For additional
information regarding financial instruments, see Note 7 — Credit
Facilities and Note 12 - Fair Value of Financiol Instruments)

Note 9 - Redeemadle Praferred Stosx

During 1997, the Company issued 600000 shares of its authorized
preferred stock having a par value of $.01 per share. Redemption of
these shares, designated by the Company as Cumulative Mandatory
Redeemable Preferred Stock, 754% Series, was mandatory on
December 31, 2002, and the Company redeemed these shares as
required utilizing proceeds from privately placed long term notes.
These redeemable preferred shares had no voting rights, at any time,
during the period for which they were outstanding.

Wote 98 - Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense/ (benefit) related to

income/{loss) from continuing operations for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, consisted of the following:

{Thousands of dollars) 2002 2001 2000
Federal
Current $ (420} {901) (3.441)
Deferred (6,689} 1,788 4,717
(7,709} 887 1,276
State
Current 412 301 459
Deferred {1,823) (460)  (1,324)
Total $(7.722; 728 411

A reconciliation of the US. statutory income tax rate to the Company’s
effective rates on income/{loss) from continuing operations before
income faxes consisted of the following:

2002 2001 2000

Statutory income tax rate (35}%  35% 35%
State income taxes, net of
federal income tax benefit n (4) {18)
Other - - (4)
EHfective income tax rate (38)% 31% 13%
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An analysis of the Company’s deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities at December 31, 2002 and 2001, showing the tox effects of
significant temporary differences, consisted of the following:

(Thousands of dollars) 2002 2001
Deferred tax assets

Investment in real estate held

for development and sale $ 10,856 9,869
State NOL carryforward 4,339 3.834
Postretirement and

other employee benefits 1,844 1,476
AMT credit carryforward 372 -
Other deferred tax assets 593 788

Total deferred tox assets 18,524 15,967
Less valuation allowance (2,142} (957}
Total deferred tax assets — net 16,362 15,010
Deferred tax liabilities
investment in DelTin Fiber (2,886) (8,703)
Timber and timberlands (78,578)  (19,622)
Property, plant, and equipment (8,998) (5,574)
Other deferred tax liabilities [(283) (171)
Total deferred tax liabilities (27,632)  (34,070)

Net deferred tax assets/ (iabilities) (19,060)

Net long-term deferred tax liabilities were $11,955000 at
December 31, 2002, and $19669000 at December 31, 2001,
In addition, shortterm deferred tax assets of $685000 at
December 31, 2002, and $609000 at December 31, 2001,
are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets in Prepaid
Expenses and Cther Current Assets for the respective years.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had valuation
allowances of $2,142,000 and $957000, respectively, to reduce

its deferred tax assets to estimated realizable value. The valuation
allowances relate to the deferred tax assets arising from state tax
loss carryforwards. The net changes in the valuation allowances
during 2002 and 2001 were increases of $1,185000 and $957000,
respectively, and were principally due to the potential expiration of
net operating losses for state tax purposes.

In ossessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, Deltic's
management considers whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the Company’s total deferred tax assets will not
be realized. The ultimate realization of these deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the
periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies
in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable
income and projections for future taxable income over the pericds

in which the temporary differences are anticipated fo reverse,
management believes it is more likely than not that the Company

will reclize the benefits of its deferred tax assets, net of the valuation
allowance, at December 31, 2002, as reductions of future taxable
income or by utilizing availoble tax planning strategies. However,

the amount of the net deferred tax assets considered realizable could
be adjusted in the future if estimates of taxable income are revised.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had operating loss
carryforwards for state tax purposes of approximately $80,651000.
Of this amount, $14000 expires in 2003, $1,402,000 expires in 2004,
$34162,000 expires in 2005, $21696000 expires in 2006, and
$23377000 expires in 2007, The Company had expected federal
tax refunds of $1556000 and $1985000 at December 31, 2002
and 200, respectively, reflected in the Censolidated Balance Sheets
in Other Receivables.

The Company was part of the consolidated income tax return

of its former parent, Murphy Qil, for periods prior fo its spin-off on
January 1, 1997 Under the terms of a tax sharing agreement between
the Company and Murphy Oil which governs tax matters for this
period, Murphy Qil personnel handle the administration of any tax
disputes. Murphy Oil has open years on its returns for years 1992,
1993, and 1994. During 2002, Murphy Oil closed the audit of its
returns for 1995 and 1996 and paid Deltic a refund of $369000.

It is currently anticipated that the Company may have an additional
net tax liability for the years 1992, 1993 and 1994 once these audits
are closed. However, it is also anticipated that any amount of
additional taxes owed to Murphy Oil for these periods will result in
additional deferred tax assets related to its investment in real estate
held for development and sale. Therefore, such settlement should
have no material impact on total income tax expense/|benefit).

Nosz 11 = Stocxholade
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rs Rights Plan

The Company has a Stockholders Rights Plan, which provides
for each eligible common shareholder to receive a dividend

of one preferred stock purchase right {“Right”) for each
outstanding share of the Company’s common stock held.

The Rights will expire on December 31, 2006, unless earlier
exchanged or redeemed. The Rights will detach from the common
stock and become exercisable: {1) following a specified period
of time after the date of the first public announcement that @
person or group of affiliated or associated persons ("Acquiring
Person”), other than certain persons, has become the beneficial
owner of 15 percent or more of the Company’s common stock

or (2) following o specified amount of time of the commencement
of a tender or exchange offer by any Acquiring Person, other
than certain persons, which would, if consummated, result in such
persons becoming the beneficial owner of 15 percent or more

of the Company's common stock. In either case, the detachment
of the Rights from the common stock is subject to extension by a
maijority of the directors of the Company. The Rights have certain
antitakeover effects and will cause substantial dilution to any
Acquiring Person that attempts to acquire the Company without
conditioning the offer on a substantial number of Rights being
acquired. The Rights are not intended to prevent a takeover,

but rather are designed to enhance the ability of the Board of
Directors of the Company to negofiate with an acquiror on
behalf of all the shareholders. Other terms of the Rights are

set forth in, and the foregoing description is qualified in its
entirety by, the Rights Agreement between the Company and
Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as Rights Agent.




Netz 42 = Fair Velue of Financial Instruments

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated

fair values of financial instruments held by the Company at
December 31, 2002 and 2001. The fair value of a financial instrument
is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties. The table excludes
financial instruments included in current assets and liabilities,

except the current portion of noncurrent notes receivable and

current maturities of longterm debt, all of which have fair values
approximating carrying values.

NMote 14 - Employee and Retires Benelfit Plans

The Company provides retirement plans {a qualified and a
nonqualified plan) and other postretirement benefits to the majority
of its employees. Reconciliations of benefit obligations, plan assets,
and funded status of the plans consisted of the following:

2002 2001
Canying Estimated Canying Estimated
{Thousands of dollars) Amount  Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assets
Funds held by trustee $ 447 447 2,236 2,236

Notes receivable Z1 2% 40 40
Financiol liabilities
Long-term debt, including
current maturities (118,190) (118,053) (84,264) (83,943)
Redeemable preferred stock - - (30,000) (31,312)
Offbalance sheet exposures
Guarantees - {i5,538) -

(1,266) -

(13.748)

Letters of credit - {2.050)

Funds held by trustee — The carrying amount approximates its
fair value.

Notes receivable, including current portion — The carrying value is
estimated to approximate fair value based on the change in interest
rates spread since the notes’ obligation dates.

Long-term debt, including current maturities — The fair value is
estimated based on current rates at which the Company could
borrow funds with similar remaining maturities.

Redeemable preferred stock — The fair value is based on

the redemption amount for the stock, discounted using the
Company’s estimated borrowing rate for debt instruments with
similar remaining maturities.

Guarantees and letters of credit - The fair value is based on the
estimated cost to settle these obligations.

Note 13 = Cencentration af Credit Risks

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to credit
risk are trade accounts receivable. These receivables normally arise
from the sale of wood products and real estate. Concentration of
credit with respect to these trade accounts receivable is limited due
to the large number of customers comprising the Company’s customer
base. No single customer accounted for a significant amount of the
Company’s sales of wood products or real estate in 2002, 200}, or
2000. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, there were no significant
accounts receivable from a single customer.

{Thousands of dollars)
Change in projected
benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at January 1
Service cost
Inferest cost
Parficipant contributions
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Curtailments'
Benefits paid
Benefit obligation
at December 3}

Change in pian assets
Fair value of plan assets
at January 1
Actual return on plan assels
Employer contributions
Participant contributions
Benefits peid
Fair value of plan assets
of December 3V

Reconciliation of funded
status of plans
Funded status of plans
Unrecognized actuarial
(gain)/loss
Unrecognized net asset from
transition to SFAS 87°

Unrecognized prior service cost

Contributions
Prepaid/(accrued) benefit cost’
Assumptions

Weighted average discount rate
Rate of compensation increase

Other
Refirement Posiretirement

Plans Benefils
2002 200 2002 2001
$ 12,077 10,597 4,028 4,729
658 589 292 263
283 776 £13 397
- - 38 23
2,044 192 1,307 700
- 161 - 127
(179} (238) [148) (211}
$15,485 12,077 7,930 6,028
$12,162 12,680 - -
421y  (287) - -
- - 110 188
- - 38 23
{147)  (231) (148) (211)
$11.594 12,162 - -
$ (3,89 85 [7,930) (6.028)
3,847 362 2,951 1,703
£35) (84) - -
433 487 - -
5 4 - -
$ 353 854 [4,979)(4,325)
86.50% 7.25% 6.50% 7.25%
4.62% 4.60% N/A N/A

' Reflects impact of early retirements of agriculture segment employees resulting from
discontinuation of operations. {For additional information about the discontinuation of the
agriculture segment, see Note 2 - Discontinued Agriculture Segment)

2Primorily includes listed stocks and bonds, government securities, and U.S. agency bonds.

*Being amortized over a period of 15 years.

“Included in the Consolidoted Balance Sheets in Deferred Charges and Other Assets/

Other Noncurrent Liabilities.




Components of net periodic refirement expense and other
postretirement benefits expense consisted of the following:

(Thousands of dollars) 2002 2001 2000
Retiremen? plans
Service cost $ 458 589 627
Interest cost &8s 776 686
Expected return on plan assefs (1,027 (1,070) (972)
Amortization of prior service cost 53 53 54
Amortization of transitional asset (493 (49) (50)
Recognized actuarial (gain)/loss 26 {23) 23
Net retirement expense $ 334 276 368
Cther pasiretirement benefits
Service cost $ 292 263 296
Interest cost 4.3 397 314
Recognized actuarial (gain)/loss 52 40 44
Other postretirement
benefits expense $ 757 720 654
Assumpiions
Weighted average discount rate 7.25%  7.50% 7.25%
Expected longterm rate
of return on plan assets 8.50%  8.50% 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase 4.63%  4.60%  4.60%

Retirement Plens — For the Company’s qualified plan, the projected
benefit obligation {"PBO”) exceeded the fair value of plan assets by
$2,909000 at December 31, 2002; however, the fair value of plan
assefs exceeded the accumulated benefit obligation {("ABO”} ot year-
end by $1,525,000. Therefore, no recognition of a minimum pension
liability was required for the qualified plan. The Company does not
fund its nonqualified plan; therefore, this plan has no assets. At year-
end 2002 and 2001, the PBO for this nonqualified plan was $983000
and $800000, respectively. The Company recorded a liability equal
to the nonqualified plans ABO of $705000 at December 31, 2002,
and $624,000 at December 31, 2001, which is reflected in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets in Other Noncurrent Liabilities.

Other Postretirement Benefits — The Company sponsors a plan
that provides comprehensive health care benefits (supplementing
Medicare benefits for those eligible) and life insurance benefits for
retired employees. Costs are accrued for this plan during the service
fives of covered employees. Retirees contribute a portion of the self-
funded cost of health care benefits; the Company contributes the
remainder. The Company pays premiums for life insurance coverage,
arranged through an insurance company. The health care plan is
funded on a pay-asyougo basis. The Company retains the right to
modify or terminate the benefits and/or cost sharing provisions.

In determining the benefit obligation for health care at

December 31, 2002, health care inflation cost was assumed

to increase at an onnual rate of 75 percent in 2002, increasing

to 10 percent in 2003 and then decreasing one percent per year
to 5 percent in 2008 and thereafter. A one percentage-point
increase in the assumed health care cost trend would increase the
aggregate service and interest cost components of periodic benefit
cost for 2002 by $7600C and the benefit obligation by $549,000,

while a one percentage-point decrease in the assumed rate would

decrease the 2002 cost components by $68000 and the benefit
obligation by $503000.

Thrifs Plan — Employees of the Company may participate in its
thrift plan by alloting up to a specific percentage of their base pay.
The Company matches contributions at a stated percentage of each
employees allotment, based on length of participation in the plan.
Company contributions to this plan were $290000 in 2002,
$275000 in 2001, and $281,000 in 2000.
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Stock Inecentive Plan

On April 25, 2002, the Company’s shareholders approved the Deltic
Timber Corporation 2002 Stock Incentive Plan {“the 2002 Plan”}. The
2002 Plan replaced the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan (‘the 1996 Plar’),
which was terminated. At December 31, 2002, remaining outstanding
opfions under the 1994 Plan totaled 331680 shares, of which 242,955
shares were exercisable. No further awards will be made under the
1996 Plan, and the unexercisable outstanding options will be fully
vested by the end of the first quarter of 2004, Outstanding options
under the 1996 Plan will expire from 2006 to 2011 if not exercised
and have an average exercise price of $2431 based on the fair
market value ot date of grant.

The 2002 Plan permits annual awards of shares of the

Company’s common stock to executives, other key employees,

and directors. Under the plan, the Executive Compensation
Committee (“the Committee”) is authorized to grant: (1) stock options;
{2) restricted stock and restricted stock units; (3) performance units;
and {4} other stockbased awards, including stock appreciation rights
and rights to dividends and dividend equivalents. The number of
shares available for issuance under the 2002 Plan is 1800000 shares
unless adjustment is determined necessary by the Committee as the
result of dividend or other distribution, recapitalization, stock split,
reverse stock split, reorganization, merger, consolidation, splitup,
spin-off, combination, repurchase or exchange of common stock,

or other corporate transaction in order to prevent dilution or
enlargement of benefits or potential benefits intended to be made
available, At December 31 2002, 1637750 of these 1800000 shares
were available for award under the 2002 Plan. No participant in
the 2002 Plan may receive options and stock appreciation rights in
any calendar year that relates to more than 50000 shares, and the
maximum number of shares which may be awarded as restricted
stock and restricted stock units or other stock-based awards is 180000
shares. The Company applies the intrinsic value method of APB 25 to
account for stock-based compensation, accruing costs of any stock
options and restricted stock over the respective vesting/performance
pericds. The cost of stockbased compensation is reflected in General
and Administrative Expenses on the Consolidated Statements of
Income and amounted to $664000 in 2002, $618000 in 2001,

and $442,000 in 2000, {For additiona! information regarding the
Company’s stock-based compensation, including the effect on net
income/{loss) and earnings per share if the Company had applied
the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123, see Note 1 -
Significant Accounting Policies)




Stock Options - For each option granted under the 2002 Plan, the
Committee fixes the option price at not less than fair market value on
the date of the grant and the opfion ferm, not to exceed 10 years from
date of grant. [Options granted in 2002 were awarded in February
2002 subiject to shareholder approval in April. As a result of an increase
in the market volue of the Company’s common stock from the grant date
to the approval date, these options have an infrinsic value of $346 per
share. The resulting fixed stocked-based compensation cost is being
accrued over the vesting period for these options) Replacement options
granted due to the spin-off from Murphy Oil were for 10 years from
original grant date and nenqualified. New options granted in 1997
and 1998 were for 10 years and primarily incentive. Options granted
since 1998 have been for 10 years and nonqualified. All options have
an opfion price not less than the market value on the grant date, with
a range in option prices of $990 to $29295 per share. For options
granted in 1997, exclusive of replacement options, half could be
exercised or surrendered after two years and the remainder after
three years. For options granted from 1998 through 2001, half could
be exercised or surrendered after one year and the remainder after
three years. During 2002, the Company granted options for 162,250
shares. For 122,250 shares, half may be exercised or surrendered after
one year and the remainder after three years, and the remaining
40000 shares, awarded to nonemployee directors af an option price
of $29295, were vested immediately when awarded.

Changes in options outstanding, including replacement options,
consisted of the following:

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units — The Committee
may award restricted sfock and restricted stock units to selected
employees, with conditions to vesting for each grant estoblished by
the Committee. During the vesting period, the grantee may vote and
receive dividends on the shares, but shares are subject to transfer
restrictions and are all, or partially, forfeited if a grantee terminates,
depending on the reason.

Changes in shares of restricted stock outstanding consisted of
the following:

2002 2001 2000

Balance at beginning of year 34,094 34094 13,500
Granted - - 21,400
Forfeited - - (806)

Balance at end of year 34,094 34,094 34,094

Number of Average
Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at December 31, 1999 217,855 $23.86
Granted 70,550 $22.06
Surrendered/exercised - N/A
Forfeited/expired (6.700) N/A
Outstanding at December 31, 2000 281,705 $23.40
Granted 112,700 $23.88
Surrendered/exercised {1,750) N/A
Forfeited/expired {500) N/A
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 392,155 $23.58

Granted 162,250 $29.295
Surrendered/exercised (59.350) N/A
Forfeited/expired (2,125) N/A
Outstanding at December 3}, 2002 492,930 $25.94
Exercisable at December 31, 2000 156,981 $22.93
Exercisable ot December 31, 2001 212,580 $23.45
Exercisable at December 31, 2002 282,955 $25.36

Additional information about stock options outstanding at
December 31, 2002, consisted of the following:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Number Average Average Number  Average
Exerclse of Life Exercise of Exercise

Prices Options  in Years Price Opfions Price

$12.40 1,750 31 $12.40 1,750 $12.40
$22.06 - $24.97 262,550 6.7 23.65 173,825 23.88
$25.25. $29.295 228,630 78 28.67 107.380 27.96
492,930 7.2 25.94 282,955 25.36

The fair value per share of restricted stock granted in 2000

was $22.06. Unearned compensation was charged for the market
value of the restricted shares. The unearned compensation is shown as
a reduction of stockholders’ equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
as Unamorfized Restricted Stock Awards, and is being amortized to
expense over the respective four-year restricted period.

Performance Units - Performance units granted under the 2002 Plan
may be denominated in cash, common shares, other securities, other
awards allowed under the 2002 Plan, or other property and shall
confer on the holder thereof rights valued as determined by the
Committee and payable to, or exercisable by, the holder, in whole

or in part, upon achievement of such performance goals during such
performance periods as the Committee shall establish. Subject to the
terms of the 2002 Plan, the performance goals to be achieved during
any performance period, the length of any performance period, the
amount of any performance unit granted, and any payment or transfer
to be made pursuant to any performance unit shall be determined by
the Committee. No performance units hove been granted.

Other Stock-based Awards ~ The Committee may also grant
other awards, including but not limited to, stock appreciation
rights and rights to dividends and dividend equivalents that

are denominated, or payable in, valued in whole or in part by
reference to, or otherwise based on or related to shares of the
Company's common stock, including securities convertible in its
common stock, as deemed by the Committee 1o be consistent with
the purpose of the 2002 Plan. No such other stock-based awards
have been granted.

incentive Compensation Plan

Cash Awards — The Company has an Incentive Compensation Plan
that provides for annual cash awards to officers, directors, and key
employees based on actual results for o year compared to objectives
established by the Committee, which administers the Plan, at the
beginning of that year. Provisions for cash incentive awards of
$358000, $405000, and $722,000 were recorded in 2002, 200},
and 2000, respectively.
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Income taxes paid, net of refunds, were $1079000 in 2000.

During 2002 and 2001, net refunds of $1096000 and $4,734000,
respectively, were received. Interest paid was $4171,000, $5475000,
and $4,530000 in 2002, 2001, and 200G respectively. No interest
was capitalized in 2002, 2001, or 2000,

Noncash investing and financing activities excluded from the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows were a non-cash accrual
recorded for the contingent liability related to the 2003 sinking fund
deposits of Del-Tin Fiber that are more likely than not to be required
from the Company; in the amount of $4478000, and assumptions
of ownerfinanced debt during 2001, in the amount of $174000.

{For additional information regarding the contingent liability, see
Note 4 — Investment in DelTin Fiber and Note 18 — Commitments
and Contingencies)

(Increases)/decreases in operating working capital other than
cash and cash equivalents, for each of the three years ended
December 31 consisted of the following:

ash Flows Disclosures

2002 2001 2000
Earnings per common share

Basic
Continuing operations $11.23) (.05) 04
Discontinued operations - .70 89
Net income/(loss) $(1.33) .65 93

Assuming dilution

$(5.33) {.05) .04
Discontinued operations - .70 .89
Net income/{loss) $177.33) .65 .93

Continuing operations

* Additional potential common shares from stock options cutstanding for 2002 and 2001,
amounting to 39,000 and 33,000, respectively, were excluded from the calculation of diluted
earnings per share since they would result in antidilution due to the loss from continuing
operations available to common shareholders.

{Thousands of dollars) 2002 2001 2000

Trade accounts receivable $ 1,090 (499) 828
Other receivables 1,347 2,777 (3,467}
Inventories (692} (438) 4,284
Prepaid expenses and

other current assets 780) (672) 691
Trade accounts payable 1208) 573 (248)
Deferred credits and

other accrued liabilities 155 1,125 (5)

$1.532 2,866 2,083

Yote 17 = Earrnings por Share

The amounts used in computing earnings per share ond the effect
on income and weighted average number of shares outstanding of
dilutive potential common stock consisted of the following:

(Thousands of dollars) 2002 2001 2000
Income/{loss) from
continuing operations
Less preferred dividends declared
Earnings from continuing

operations available to
common shareholders

Discontinued operations, net

${73.639) 1,623 270
12249)  (2.262) (2.262)

(15,888)  (639) 439
8,357 10,856

Earnings available to

common shareholders $(75,888) 7718 11,295
Weighted average number of
common shares used in basic EPS 11,979 11,896 12,176

Effect of dilutive stock options™ - - 10
Weighted average number of
common shares and cilutive
potential common stock used
in EPS assuming dilution

11,919 11,896 12,186

N (e T R 0m ey i a R
rose 18 - Commitments end Censinganaies

Commitments ~ Commitments for capital expenditures at

December 31, 2002, were approximately $8950000 for timber and
timberlands, including $8327000 for the purchase of 4979 acres of
Southern Pine timberland which closed in January 2003; $1248000
for property, plant, and equipment; and $3,589000 for investment in
real estate held for development and scle.

Contingencies — The Company has various contingencies

related fo its investment in Del-Tin Fiber and has either recorded

such contingencies info its financial statements or disclosed the
conditions of the contingency as required by SFAS 5 Accounting for
Contingencies. (For the details of these contingencies, see Note 4 -
Investment in DelTin Fiber) The Company is also involved in litigation
incidental to its business from time fo time. Currently, there are no
material legal proceedings outstanding.

Note 99 = Business Segments

The Company'’s four reporting segments consist of Deltic’s three
operating business units and its corporate function. Each reporting
entity has a separate management team and infrastructure that
offers different products and/or services.

Woodiands operations manage the Company’s Southern Pine
timberlands located primarily in Arkansas and north Louisiana and
derive revenue from the harvest of timber from the timberlands, in
accordance with its harvest plans, and either sells timber to third
parties in the domestic market or to the Company’s Mills segment

for conversion into lumber. In addition, this segment may, from time

to time, identify and sell a portion of its timberland holdings that is
either non-strategic to future timberland management activities or has
appreciated, due primarily to location, to a level that exceeds its value
as a timber—growing asset. This segment also generates revenue from
the leasing of hunting, oil and gos, and other rights on its timberlands.

The Mills segment consists of Deltics two sawmills which convert
timber, purchased from third parties or the Company’s Woodlands
segment, into lumber. These mills produce a variety of products,




including dimension lumber, boards, timbers, decking, and
secondary manufacturing products, such as finger-jointed studs.
These products are sold primarily to wholesalers and lumber treaters
in the South and.Midwest and used in residential construction, roof
trusses, laminated beams, and remanufactured items.

Real Estate operations, which currently include three separate

real estate developments, add value to former timberland by
developing it into upscale, planned residential and commercial
developments. These developments, each of which is centered
around a core amenity, are being developed in stages. To-date,
real estate sales have consisted primarily of residential lots sold

to builders or individuals, commercial site sales, and sales of
undeveloped acreage. In addition, this segment currently leases
retail and office space to third parties in a refail center constructed
by the Company, and held for sale, in one of its developments.
This segment also manages: (1) a real estate brokerage subsidiary
which currently generates commission revenue by reselling existing
homesites in one of the Company developments and (2) a country
club operation, Chenal Couniry Club, Inc,, around which the
Company’s Chenal Valley development is centered. This club
operation derives its revenues from membership services, food

and beverage sales, and membership dues.

Corporate operations consist primarily of senior management,
planning, accounting, information systems, human resources,
treasury, income tax, and legal staff functions that provide support
services fo the operating business units. The Company currently
does not allocate the cost of maintaining these support functions
to its operating units.

in August 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors approved
the disposal of Deltic's former Agriculture segment. As a result,
agriculture operating results are reported as discontinued
operations. (For additional information about the discontinuation
of the agriculture operations, see Note 2 — Discontinued
Agriculture Segment)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the

same os those described in Note 1 - Significant Accounting
Policies. The Company evaluates the performance of its segments
based on operating income before results of Del-Tin Fiber, an
equity method investee; interest income and expense; other
nonoperating income or expense; and income taxes. Intersegment
revenues consist primarily of timber sales from the Woodlands
segment to the Mills operations.

Information about the Company’s business segments consisted of
the following:

{Thousands of dollars) 2002 2001 2000
Net sales
Woodlands $ 36,964 38309 41,483
Mills 70,386 57,382 44870
Real Estate 15,343 25,020 18,035
Eliminations' (18,781) (14,700) (14.857)

$ 104,512 106,011 109,531

{Thousands of dollars) 2002 2001 2000
income/(loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes
Operating income

Woodlands $ 22,449 22,321 28,675
Mills (6,370) (7.101) (6.415)
Real Estate 2,004 7.392 2,400
Corporate (6,792} (6.372) (6.475)
Eliminations (594) (416) (71)
Operating income 10,697 15824 18,114
Equity in loss of and write-off
of investment in DelTin Fiber (28,217) (9.132) (10,938)
Interest income 284 946 517
Interest and other debt expense {4,538} (5.725) (4.921)

Other income/(expense} £33 438 340
$ (21,361) 2351 3,112

Total assets at year-end

Woodlands $ 202,473 208,114 173,108
Mills 50,541 50,099 53,720
Real Estate 46,160 37,925 35593
Corporate™* 11,432 32,242 54,586

Total assets for
continuing operations 310,546 328,380 319.007
Discontinued
agriculture operations . - - 3,626

$ 310,546 328.380 322,633

Depreciation, amortization, and
cost of fee timber harvested

Woodlands $ 8786 9038 7,513
Mills 5,840 5,441 4,518
Real Estate 454 365 567
Corporate 144} 147 231
$ 15224 14991 12,829
Capital expenditures
Woodlonds $ 5175 44432 24975
Mills 3,571 5,861 8,386
Real Estate 15,378 13,514 9,647
Corporate 113 150 320
Capital expenditures for

continving operations 24,237 63,957 43,348

Discontinued
agriculture operations - - 53
$ 24,237 43,957 43,401

! Primarily intersegment sales of fimber from Woodlands to Mils.

2 Includes investment in DebTin Fiber, an equity method investee, of zero (after writeoff of
impaired investment camrying value), $11,600,000, and $5,862,000 of December 31, 2002, 2001,
and 2000, respectively. (For additional information regarding DelTin Fiber, see Note 4 -
Investment in DelTin Fiber.}

3 Includes balance of farmland/timberland sales proceeds held by trustee of $447,000
as of December 31, 2002, $2,236,000 as of December 31, 2001, and $16,317000 as of
December 31, 2000, and advances to accommodating tifle holders and Ashly Plantation minerity
owners of $16,364,000 as of December 31, 2000. (For additional information regarding the
transactions resulting in these omounts, see Note 2 - Discontinued Agriculture Segment.)
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(Thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

Net sales
Gross profit
Operating income
Income/{loss) from continuing operations
Income/ {loss) from discontinued operations
Net income/{loss}
Earnings per common share
Basic
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income/(loss}
Assuming dilution
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income/{loss)
Dividends per common share
Market price per common share
High
Low
Close, ot periodend

Net soles
Gross profit
Operating income
Income/ (loss) from continuing operations
Income/ (loss) from discontinued operations
Net income/ (loss)
Earnings per common share
Basic
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income/(loss}
Assuming dilution
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income/ [loss}
Dividends per common shcre
Market price per common share
High
Low
Close, at periodend

* Includes the writeoff of the Company's investment in DekTin Fiber of $18,723,000, $11,440,000 net of related deferred income taxes of $7,283,000.

= Financial Besulss by Quarter [Urnaudited)

2002
First Second Third Fourth
Quarier Quarter Quarter Quarter* Year
$ 27,098 28,106 28,8658 23,746 104,572
6,784 8,142 3,81 1,882 8,309
4,737 4,024 1,669 267 0,697
82" 1103 (992) 118,663) (13,639)
821 (1Q) 1992) (13,458) (13,639)
$ .02 (.25) 1.13) {3.18) (1.33)
02 (.08 (.33) (1.18) (1.33)
02 (.65) [.13) (1.18) (1.33)
02 1.85) (73] (1.18) 11.33)
$ 06268 0628 0625 0425 .25
$ 3043 34.95 358.20 29.3% 35.20
28.0T 29.75 27.98 22,80 21.98
30.25 34.43 21.98 26.70 28.70
2001
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

$ 22,494 27,800 25,440 30,277 106,011
6,254 6,296 3,390 6,955 22,895
4,606 3,379 2,588 5,251 15,824
975 (118) (114) 880 1,623
8,212 119 51 (25) 8,357
9,187 1 {(63) 855 9,980
$ .03 {.08) (.06) 02 (.05)
.69 01 .01 - .70
72 (.05) (.05) .02 65
.03 (.06) (.06) .02 (.05)
.69 .01 01 - 70
72 (.05) {.05) .02 .65
$ 0625 0625 0625 0625 25
$ 24.09 28.80 29.66 28.95 29.66
20.02 20.05 24,07 24.6% 20.02
20.25 28.80 25.30 27.40 27.40




INDEPENDENT

AYUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors
Deltic Timber Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Deltic Timber Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002
and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 3], 2002. The consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts ond disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evolucting the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Deltic Timber Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002
and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

KPMG LLP
Shreveport, Louisiana
February 7 2003

AUDIT COMMITTEE
T

CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

The Shareholders
Deltic Timber Corporation:

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors {“the Committee”} is
responsible for providing independent oversight of the Company’s .
occounting functions and internal controls. The members of the
Committee are selected by the Board of Directors. The Committee
consists of five outside directors and operates under a written

charter approved by the Board of Directors. {A copy of this charter
is included in the proxy statement for the Company’s 2001 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders) The Committee met five times during 2002.

The Committee also oversees the financial reporting process

on behalf of the Board of Directors. As part of this responsibility,

the Committee assessed the independence of the Company’s external
auditors, utilizing written disclosures received from such auditors as
required by the provisions adopted by the Independence Standards
Board, and recommended to the Board of Directors, subject to
shareholder approval, the selection of the Company’s external
auditors. The Committee discussed the overall scope and specific
plans for audit services with the Company’ internal auditor and

with KPMG LLP the Company’s external auditors. The Committee
reviewed and discussed the quarterly financial statements prior to
the filing of the Company’s Form 10-Q%. In addition, the Committee
also reviewed and discussed the Company's audited consolidated
financial statements and adequacy of the Company’s internal controls
and discussed with KPMG LLP the matters required by Statements

on Auditing Standards 61, Communication with Audit Committees.
The Committee also met with the internal auditor and KPMG LLP to
discuss the results of their respective audits, their consideration of the
Company’s internal controls, and the overall quality of the Company's
financial reporting. The meetings were also designed to facilitate any
private communication with the Committee, without management
present, desired by the internal auditor or KPMG LLP

Based upon these reviews and discussions, the Committee
approved the accompanying audited financial statements for
inclusion in the annual report on Form 10K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

John C. Shealy
Chairman, Audit Committee
March 5, 2003
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REPORAT ©F MANAGEMENT

The Shareholders
Deltic Timber Corporation:

The management of Deltic Timber Corporation has prepared and is responsible for the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
The statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, appropriate in
the circumstances. In preparing the financial statements, management has, when necessary, made judgments and estimates with consideration

given to materiality.

The Company hos established and maintains a disclosure control system and related policies and procedures designed to ensure that

material information réloting to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known. In addition, the Company maintains
internal control systems and related policies and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against
loss or unauthorized use, that the accounting records accurately reflect business transactions, and that the transactions are in accordance with
management’s authorization. The design, monitoring, and revision of the systems of internal control involve, among other things, our judgment
with respect fo the relative cost and expected benefits of specific control measures. The Company also maintains an internal auditing function
which monitors the effectiveness of the controls, while independently and systematically evaluating and formally reporting on the adequacy and

effectiveness of components of the system.

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP independent certified public accountants, who have
expressed their opinion with respect to the fairness of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. Their audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which include
the consideration of the Company’s internal controls to the extent necessary to form an independent opinion on the consolidated financial
statements prepared by management. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (“the Audit Committee”) appoints the independent auditors;

ratification of the appointment is solicited annually from the shareholders.

The Audit Committee is composed of directors who are not officers or employees of the Company. The Audit Committee meets periodically

with the certified public accountants, the Company* internal audifor, and representatives of management fo review the Company’ internal

controls, the quality of its financial reporting, the scope and results of audits, and the independence of the external auditors. The Company's
internal auditor and KPMG LLP have unrestricted access fo the Audit Committee, without managements presence, to discuss audit findings

and other financial matters.

Clefton D. Vaughan
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
February 7 2003




Opereting

Acres owned'
Woodlends. .. ........ ... . ... ..
RealBstate ... ....... ... .. .. ... .. .. .. ... ...
Agriculture . ... ...

Woodlands
Estimated standing pine timber inventories'
Sawtimber fons) . ..
Pulpwood frons) . . ..o
Company-owned pine timber harvested
Sawtimber fons) . .. ...
Average sales price fperton] ... ...
Pulpwood fons) . . ..
Average sales price fperton) ... ... ...
Timberland sales
Acressold. . ........... ... ... ..

Mills

Production
Annual capacity M8’ ...
Finished lumber (ver) .. ... ... .. ... .. ...
Pine chips flons) .. oo v vt

lumber sales mer) . .. .. ...
Average sales price fper MBF) . ...l

Mill margin perMBE) . . ...

Real Estate
Residential lots sold .. ....... ... ..............
Average sales price fperloff .. ...
Commercial acressold . ........... ... ... .....
Average sales price (peracre) .. ...
Undeveloped acressold . ............... ... ...
Average sales price fperacre) ... ...

Steckholder and Employee Data’

Common shares outstanding fthousands). . . . . . .. ... ... ..
Number of stockholders of record . . ... ... ... ... ...,
Number of employees . ........................

' At December 31

Zinclydes intersegment transfers at market prices.

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

431,100 432700 408,000 395400 397,000
5,700 5,900 6,200 9,800 10,100

- - 18,400 37,000 37,000
10,421,000 10,694,200 10,373,100 9,913,700 9,603,000
4,113,600  5937,400 5616100 4708200 4,797,600
713779 673055 566,557 500,442 431,556
41 39 45 46 51
249,709 288771 235079 286,112 200,620

6 5 5 6 7

2418 3315 5,254 7,334 427
1,600 2,400 2,100 500 500
257,000 246000 246000 226,000 226,000
202,803 164058 168,889 185957 159,690
298,127 247,967 287772 324392  289.372
199,463 158,225 172059 189,028 162,249
298 306 324 383 343
(32) (45) (37) 34 (17)

147 198 148 196 175
68,200 85,400 54000 50800 55,600

5 14.1 10.4 740 8.0
218,200 160,700 496,300  67.000 158,100
21.9 40.1 5.0 213.1 96.3
10,000 6,900 1900 10,400 6,900
11,916 11,888 11936 12,394 12,814
1,724 1,862 2,037 2,272 3,210

513 517 481 496 499
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CORPORAYL ©rFEES

210 East Elm, P O. Box 7200

El Dorado, Arkansas 71731-7200
{870) 881-2400

www.deltic.com

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

Trading symbel: DEL
New York Stock Exchange

CRANSTIR AG

ASPIRBE

”D

G AND RECISTRAR

Computershare Investor Services, L.L.C.
2 North LaSalle Street, PC. Box 1689
Chicago, lllinois 60602

The annual meeting of the Company’s shareholders will be
held at 10 a.m. on April 24, 2003, at the South Arkansas
Arts Center, 110 East 5th Street, El Dorado, Arkansas.

A formal notice of the meeting, together with a proxy
statement and proxy form, is enclosed with this report.

FORM 10K

A copy of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10K,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
may be obtained by writing to:

Deltic Timber Corporation
Controller’s Department

P O. Box 7200

El Dorado, Arkansas 71731-7200

”J)

INGIIRES

Inquiries regarding shareholder account matters

should be addressed to:

W. Bayless Rowe, Secretary
Deltic Timber Corporation

P O. Box 7200

E! Dorado, Arkansas 717317200

Members of the financial community should
direct their inquiries to:

Kenneth D. Mann, Manager, Investor Relations
Deltic Timber Corporation

P O. Box 7200

E! Dorado, Arkansas 71731-7200

(870) 881-6432
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SUBSIDIARIES

DELTIC TIMBER PURCHASERS, INC,
210 East Elm, P O. Box 7200 / El Dorado, Arkansas 717317200

RON L. PRAFCE ..ottt President
Clefton D. Vaughan......Vice President, Treasurer, and Chief Financial Officer
W Bayless Rowe.......cccc.... Vice President, General Counsel, and Secrefary
David V. Meghreblian ................cccooo i Vice President
EMily R EVEIS...cvvveviceiiiniries ettt Controller

DELTIC SOUTHWEST TIMBER COMPANY
210 East Elm, P O. Box 7200 / El Dorado, Arkansas 717317200

RON L PEATCE ..ottt President
Clefton D. Vaughan......Vice President, Treasurer, and Chief Financial Officer
W, Bayless Rowe................ Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretary
David ¥ Meghreblian ... Vice President
Emily R EVEIS ..ottt Controller

DELTIC REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY
210 East Elm, P O. Box 7200 / El Dorado, Arkansas 71731-7200

Ron L. Pearce ........coccimiiiiiien e President
Clefton D Vaughan......Vice President, Treasurer, and Chief Financial Officer
W Bayless Rowe............... Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretary
Emily R BVEIS ... Controller

CHENAL PROPERTIES, INC.
210 East Elm, P ©. Bex 7200 / El Dorado, Arkansas 71731-7200

RON L PEAICE ...t cv e e President
Clefton D. Voughan......Vice President, Treasurer, and Chief Financial Officer
Jack R MECray ..o Vice President
W Bayless Rowe................ Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretary
EMily R EVEIS...ovvivieecececcicii et e Controller

CHENAL COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
210 East Elm, P O. Box 7200 / &l Dorado, Arkansas 71731-7200

ROM L PEAMCE ...t President
Clefton D Vaughan......Vice President, Treasurer, and Chief Financial Officer
W, Bayless Rowe................ Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretary

Emily R.EVEIS.....oececieecii e Controller
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